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Corporate Information
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Board of Directors
Executive Directors
Mr. CHAU Cheok Wa
Ms. YEUNG So Mui

Ms. CHENG Mei Ching
Ms. YEUNG So Lai

Mr. QIU Bin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. TOU Kin Chuen

Dr. WU Kam Fun Roderick

Mr. LO Wai Tung John

Company Secretary
Mr. LUK Chi Keung

Auditor
Andes Glacier CPA Limited

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
The Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business in the PRC

Room 2101-2109

Tower F Xihaimingchu Building

No. 1 Taoyuan Road

Nan Shan District

Shenzhen 518052, Guangdong Province
The PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Room 2108, 21/F., China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong
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Corporate Information
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Principal Share Registrar and Transfer
Office in the Cayman Islands

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

26th Floor

Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

In Hong Kong:

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

In the PRC:
China Construction Bank

China CITIC Bank

Investor Relations

For other information relating to the Company, please

contact Corporate Communications Department
website: www.sun1383.com
e-mail: ir@sun1383.com
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Properties Portfolio Overview
Wy 3 4L £ R

Property Development Business
Completed projects

Saleable Interest

Site Area GFA (m3) Area Commencement/  attributable to

Project name Place (m}) Residential Shop Office Hotel  Others" Total (m3) completion date the Group
Hong Long Century Plaza Shenzhen N/A 7,454 12,664 52,400 - 12,230 84,748 72,518 2008/Q2-2010/Q4 100%

7,454 12,664 52,400 -

12250 84748 72518

Properties under development/to be developed

Saleable Interest

Site Area GFA (m3) Area Commencement/ attributable to

Project name Place (m?¥ Residential Shop Office Hotel  Others" Total (m) completion date the Group
Le Paysage (formerly known as

Zinui Garden) Shenzhen 43538 90015 8,002 - - %% 1349 98017 2008/Q1-2013/Q2 100%

Shengshi Yayuan Shenyang 9,061 156748 39,205 - - 180 196,123 195973 2010/02-2015/Q4 100%

Vacation Water Town Chaohu 12263% 102777 10,500 - - 3000 116217 113217 2005/02-2013/Q4 100%

349540 o172 - -

30862 447149 407267

Property Leasing Business

100% owned

Project name Place by the Group
Leaseable area
(m?)
Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen 64,397
Note:
(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces.

4 Sun Century Group Limited AR5ttt EEAR AT



Properties Portfolio Overview
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Group Financial Summary

7,
45 B B s WL
Results ¥E
For the year ended 31 December
HZ=12A31A1L5E
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT ARETT ARETr AR®Tn
Turnover 3 324,669 324,494 819,375 362,369 119,628
Net increase/(decrease) in fair value of REMEODAED
investment properties B/ Cad) 8 293,570 (752,000) 208,415 56,830 62,120
Impairment loss on inventories REZREER (48,000)  (260,506) - - -
Profit/(Loss) from operations mERR/ (FB) 178,298  (1,257,948) (118,689) 172,541 122,290
Net change in fair value of derivative TESBI AR
financial instruments ARENEEFH 8 14,267 15,977 (19,994) 58,533
Finance costs BEKA (185,982) (156,023) (160,934) (87,843) (90,227)
Gain on bargain purchase in respect of BRAERAFH
business combination HEER WS - - 123,979 = =
Gain on derecognition of available- KRR E
for-sale financial assets SREENRE - 33,306 - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR MK 17,7119 81,873 200,801 = =
Impairment loss on subsidiaries group DEAFELE 2B
classified as held for sale SEZREBSE - (8,861) - - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax BHEAER/(FE) 10,043  (1,293,386) 61,134 64,704 90,596
Income tax credit/(charge) SEA/GNBR) et 29,277 175,259 (28,455) (33,497) (87,236)
Profit/(Loss) after tax BHBERN/(FE) 39,320 (1,118,127 32,679 31,207 3,360
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of AREEE ARG
the Company SH/(B58) 39,320  (1,118,121) 37,609 32,699 3,546
Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests EE  BERFERER
At 31 December
R12A31H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Non-current assets B EE 1,001,181 792,760 1,889,099 1,436,304 1,368,908
Current assets MBEE 2,284,350 2,608,808 2,811,982 3,120,386 2,455,402
Current liabilities nEBE (2,428,561)  (2,199,367)  (1,523,929) (1,210,385)  (1,255,575)
Non-current liabilities N (176,250)  (545,091)  (1,400,926)  (1,625,468) (908,932)
Non-controlling interests FERRE - - (995) (2,732) (13,082)
Equity attributable to owners of AREEE NEEES
the Company 770,720 657,110 1775231 1,718,105 1,646,721

6 Sun Century Group Limited K3 tt42 EEEHER QT



Chairman’s Statement
F 0

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Sun Century Group
Limited (formerly known as Hong Long Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”) is pleased to announce the consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil). The Group
will formulate appropriate dividend policy in accordance with the
development needs in the future.

Review and Outlook

Following the global financial crisis in 2008, China further
strengthened its economy by loosening macroeconomic policies and
launching its RMB4 trillion stimulus package in 2008. Starting in 2010,
in order to cope with the rising inflation and unbalanced economic
growth, China implemented a series of economic austerity measures
to slow down its overheated economy by adjusting interest rates,
bank deposit reserve ratio and austerity measures for the housing
market. From 2009 to 2011, China’s real GDP grew at an annual
growth rate of approximately 9.2%, 10.4% and 9.2%, respectively. In
March 2012, the PRC Government announced a real GDP growth rate
target of 7.5% in 2012 and an average real GDP growth rate target
of 7% for the five-year plan which ends in 2015. After years of high
but unbalanced economic growth, the PRC Government sets a more
moderate annual growth target which aims to improve the quality of
economic growth and to promote economic restructuring as a way to
sustain longer-term growth.
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Chairman’s Statement

E

Review and Outlook (Cont’d)

Growth in the PRC property market increased moderately in 2010 and
the first half of 2011. However, the PRC property market experienced
downward pricing pressures in the second half of 2011, as a result of
the various “cool-off” policies and measures introduced by the PRC
government. Transaction volumes remained low in 2012.

Looking ahead, although the PRC government is expected to
continue to enforce the tightening polices or measures, we remain
prudently optimistic regard the PRC property market. Followed by
China’s central bank lowered the reserve requirement ratio and
cut the benchmark interest rates two times, we believed that more
fiscal stimuli initiatives would be launched. Moreover, the economic
growth has encouraged the rapid expansion of cities in China and
acceleration in rural-to-urban migration and increased the disposable
income of the PRC population. The continued rapid urbanization
in the PRC and the improving living standards have spurred urban
residents to pursue high quality property has created ongoing
demand.

Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to bear its social responsibility and contribute
to the weak and poor. The employees of the Group have actively
participated in various charity activities involving cultural education,
disaster relief, environmental protection, health and hygiene, as well
as public transportation of the municipal. The Group will continue to
promote our corporate culture of dedicating sincerity and love to the
community internally, and bear our related social responsibility.

Acknowledgement

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders,
customers and business partners for their trust in, understanding of
and support to the Group over the years. Moreover, | would also like
to thank all staff for their tremendous effort and contribution. We will
continue to explore new business opportunities in the challenging year
ahead and strive for the best returns for our shareholders.

CHAU Cheok Wa
Chairman

28 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

T i A

Financial Review

Turnover and gross profit: Turnover comprises of sales proceeds
of properties delivered and property leasing income. The turnover
in 2012 when compared with 2011 remained stable. In 2012, we
have delivered office units of approximately 2,632m? GFA, shops of
approximately 4,707m? and residential units of approximately 1,367m?
GFA, while in 2011 we have delivered office units of approximately
8,160m? GFA and residential units of approximately 6,340m? GFA.
The selling price and the gross profit margin of shops are much higher
than that of office units and residential units resulted in the increase in
gross profit.

Other net income/(expenses): The increase in 2012 was mainly
due to the reversal of impairment on other receivables and the
increase in reversal of overprovision of accruals of approximately
RMB62,822,000 and RMB68,673,000 respectively.

Selling and distribution expenses: The increase in 2012 was
mainly due to the re-decorate expenses for the sale office in
Shenzhen.

Other operating expenses: The increase in 2012 was mainly due
to the increase in impairment loss recognised in trade and other
receivables. The Group assessed the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable at the reporting
date to ensure the carrying amount would not exceed its recoverable
amount. In 2012, the amounts due from some disposed subsidiaries
have not been secured or guaranteed, accordingly full provision has
been made during the year.

Net increase/(decrease) in fair value of investment properties:
The change in fair value was mainly due to the prevailing market
conditions. As the sale and purchase agreement to dispose of Hong
Long Plaza was lapsed in 2012, the impairment loss provision of
RMB274 million recognised in 2011 due to this transaction has been
reversed and recognised as a net increase in fair value of investment
properties in 2012.

Impairment loss on inventories: The impairment in 2012
represented the difference between the recognised inventory costs in
Chaohu Project and its fair value valued by an independent valuer.

Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments: In
September 2007, the Company issued Senior Note with warrants.
The warrants expired in the year. The associated derivative financial
liabilities were written back in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. It is a non-cash item.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

i L i e o0 A

Financial Review (Cont’d)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: During 2012, the Group
completed to dispose of various subsidiaries as a result of Group re-
organisation.

Income tax credit: The tax credit was mainly due to the written
back of PRC Corporate Income Tax and Land Appreciation Tax over
provided in previous years.

Segment Analysis

In 2012, property development income and property leasing income
accounted for approximately 85.76% (2011:88.92%) and 14.24%
(2011:11.08%) respectively.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

Bank and cash balances and pledged deposits as at 31 December
2012 amounted to approximately RMB15.22 million (31 December
2011: RMB50.13 million) which including RMB14.43 million, US$0.01
million, and HK$0.98 million.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB1,803.82
million as at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: RMB1,312.96
million). All the borrowings were repayable within one year. The
Group’s borrowings carried interest at fixed or floating interest
rates. The Group’s total borrowings divided by total assets as at 31
December 2012 was 53.44% (31 December 2011: 38.60%).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB2,284.35 million (31 December 2011:
RMB2,608.81 million) and current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,428.56 million (31 December 2011: RMB2,199.37 million).

Charge On Assets

As at 31 December 2012, bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB923.26 million were secured by certain investment
properties, inventories and pledged deposits of the Group of
approximately RMB1,080.00 million, RMB1,273.24 million and
RMB1.15 million respectively.

10 Sun Century Group Limited K3ttt EEHER QT

M EEE (&)
HEMB AT WS  H20124 - MR ALEE
HAHEMTKEEETHBEAR -

FEBES  HAEEKLTIZHNERUAESF
ERBECEMERETFE LR ER 2 BE
Bt e

a1}

R2012F » MEHREWARWERERAS
BI#I1585.76% (20114 : 88.92% ) 2 14.24%
(20114F : 11.08%) °

REBES  MEERRAEBLE
MR2012F12 A318 @ IR1T LIRS & LK
ER4EARE15.208E T (20114E12 A31
A: ARKB013BEL) ' BIEARE14.43
BEL 0.01B&XTK0.9SHEE T

R2012F 128310 » AEEWNEERREN A
AR#1,803.828&L(2011F12A8318
AR®1,831296 B8 L)  FIBEEAN
FRNEE  AEBEENEESTEHE R
B o REBMN2012F12 A3 HNEEEHE
Br A48 & B 553.44% (2011412 A31H
38.60%) °

MR2012F12A31H  "EEERBEELD
ARM2,084.35F &L (2011128318 -
AR2608.81HEL) RARBHEBEHARE
242856 A BL(2011F12A31H : AR

2,199.37TEE L) °

HEEREKF
MR2012F12A31H » BITERHEMEEDHA
REEQ23.26 B BTTHAEB DB NEARK
1,080.00H &7t - AR¥1,27324H5E LK
ARB1IEBTINETREDE  FEK
HEIRTF FRAEHEIR -



Management Discussion and Analysis

P e S o A

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi. Most of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Renminbi. The Group did not engage in any derivative
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its
balance sheet exposure as at 31 December 2012.

Contingent Liabilities
For the details of contingent liabilities, please refer to the note 37 to
the financial statements.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a staff force of
approximately 300 employees. Of this, most were stationed in the
PRC. The remuneration of employees was in line with the market trend
and commensurable to the level of pay in the industry. Remuneration
of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries, bonuses and long-
term incentives (such as Share Option Scheme). Total staff costs
incurred for the year 2012 was approximately RMB19.44 million.

Final Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year 2012 (2011: nil).

Events After The Reporting Period
For the details of events after the reporting period, please refer to the
note 44 to the financial statements.

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in the development of middle to
high end residential and commercial properties as well as leasing of
commercial properties in Guangdong, Liaoning and Anhui Provinces,
the PRC.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s total leasable GFA is
approximately 64,000m?.

Summary of development and status of existing projects are reported
in the following paragraphs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

P e K o A

Business Review (Cont’d)

Projects under development

Le Paysage: Le Paysage (formerly known as Zirui Garden) is in
the boarder land of Luohu district and Buji of Longgang district of
Shenzhen, on the hillside of the east side of Qingping expressway
and Fengyi mountain tunnel. Le Paysage consists of premier villas,
residential units and retail shops with planned GFA of approximately
135,000m?2. The project is under construction with pre-sale and
delivery in phases scheduled for the first quarter of 2013 onwards.

Vacation Water Town: Vacation Water Town is situated in
Zhongmiao Town of Chaohu in Anhui Province. Vacation Water Town
consists of lake-side villas and residential units with planned GFA of
approximately 116,000m?. The Group planned to commence pre-sale
of the residential project in phases on 2014 onwards.

Shengshi Yayuan: Shengshi Yayuan is situated in Shenyang Tiexi
Industrial New City of Shenyang Economic and Technological
Development Zone of Liaoning Province. Shengshi Yayuan consists
of high-end residence with planned GFA of approximately 196,000m?
and is under construction.

Future Development

On 19 July 2012, the Group entered into a non-legally binding
agreement of intent with an independent third party in relation to the
possible acquisition of the entire equity interest in Anhui Longsheng
Property Development Company Limited, a limited liability company
established in the PRC which owns the project in Huangshan City
of Anhui Province. The consideration for the possible acquisition will
be negotiated between the parties based on the results of the due
diligence investigations.

Disposal of Projects/Assets

The Group completed to dispose of certain projects during 2012.
We considered these are good opportunities for us to realise these
investments at reasonable prices. In addition, we will no longer be
required to provide further resources for these investments, so that
the Group may relocate its resources to other investments which may
generate higher returns for the Group.

The Group disposed of the following projects/assets during 2012:

1)  a wholly owned subsidiary which is developing Xingning
Ningjiang Uptown project at a consideration of HK$294,840,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB245,700,000).

2) a wholly owned subsidiary which is developing Shenyang
Hong Long Century Business Square at a consideration of
RMB82,000,000.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EHRZEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, aged 38, was born in the Macao Special
Administrative Region (“Macao”). He joined the Company in
September 2011 as executive director and acted as the Chairman of
the Company on 8 November 2011. He engaged in the business of
operating and managing V.I.P. clubs at hotels, including StarWorld
Hotel Macau, Venetian Macao Resort Hotel, Grand Lisboa Macau,
Wynn Macau (three V.I.P. clubs) and MGM Grand Macau; and one
of which is at the entertainment V.I.P. club of the world-renowned
Walker Hill in Seoul, the capital of the South Korea. Mr. Chau is
currently an executive director and the chairman of Sun International
Resources Limited (formerly known as Sun International Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 8029) (“Sun International”), a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Board”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chau is also a
Committee Member of China Overseas Friendship Association (FFZE
EINBEHS).

Ms. Yeung So Mui, aged 37, joined the Company in October 2010
as executive director. Ms. Yeung is the founder and a director of
Sparkle Life Charity Fund Limited. Ms. Yeung is experienced in
corporate management.

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching, aged 31, joined the Company in September
2011 as executive director. Ms. Cheng holds a bachelors degree
in commerce (marketing and advertising) from Curtin University of
Technology in Perth, Western Australia. Ms. Cheng has over the past
adopted a pragmatic and proactive management approach; and
delivered solid performance in various areas, in particular corporate
management and internal control. Ms. Cheng works at a subsidiary of
Sun International since her graduation and is currently an executive
director of Sun International. Ms. Yeung So Mui, an executive
Director, is the sister-in-law of Ms. Cheng.

Ms. Yeung So Lai, aged 35, joined the Company in September
2011 as executive director and acted as chief executive officer of
the Company on 1 February 2012. Ms. Yeung is presently a director
of a number of private companies engaged in the business of bird’s
net trading and investment holding. Ms. Yeung is experienced
in corporate management. Ms. Yeung is currently an executive
director of Sun International and JF Household Furnishings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 0776). Ms. Yeung So Mui, an executive Director, is her sister.
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Biographical Details of Directors
HRZIERE

Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Qiu Bin, aged 45, joined the Group on 1 November 2011 as
the chief executive officer of Sun Century Property Group Limited,
an indirect wholly owned subsidy incorporated in PRC. Mr. Qiu
appointed as executive Director on 19 June 2012. Mr. Qiu holds a
Master’s Degree in Management from the Asia International Open
University (Macau). He had worked with various large corporations
in Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen and been responsible for project
investment and assets restructuring. Mr. Qiu has over 15 years of
experience in investment management. He was the general manager
of China Technology Education Trust Association from January 2009
to October 2011.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tou Kin Chuen, aged 36, joined the Company on 26 April
2012 as independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
audit committee and the members of remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Tou is the principal of Roger K.C. Tou & Co.
Mr. Tou graduated from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University (formerly
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan College) with a Honours Diploma in
Accounting in 2001. He is experienced in audit, taxation, company
secretarial, insolvency and finance for over 15 years. Mr. Tou is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Tou is
currently an independent non-executive director of Sun International.

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick, aged 75, joined the Company on 26
April 2012 as independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of nomination committee and the members of audit committee
and remuneration committee. Dr. Wu obtained his LL.B. degree
and Honorary Doctorate of the University from the University of
Buckingham, United Kingdom. Dr. Wu is also Associate of Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators and a Barrister of the Inner Temple, the
Victorian Bar, Australia and the Singapore Bar. Dr. Wu was awarded
Diploma in Chinese Law by the then University of East Asia, Macau,
now known as the University of Macau. Dr. Wu has been at the Hong
Kong Bar for over 30 years. He is still now one of the practising
members of Hong Kong Bar Association.

14 Sun Century Group Limited A3 tt2EEER QT

HITEE(E)

ER3B St - 455% 0 R2011F11 A1 HEA
ANigttatEEEBR AR - AAE —HE
FEEEHARENBNITHRAEMARE
o BB AF2012F 6 A19B EZ T AT
B oMAEAEHAEMOBRPI) BEARK
BEBEITEN - FERAIER - B8RRI
ZEABAGIE BEERKEREESR
B EEREEEAMABRBIBISFDN
&5 o PA2009F 1 AE2011F 10 A HIR - 1%
HEPERESEES GBI -

BYFHITES

HEEFEE  365% 0 R2012F 4 F26H1EA
BUENTES BEREEBEIELRTMES
SRREEESEEMALARA - kLA
HETFEAMELSHTZEEA - R2001F2£
EREBHCARB(FIBESECER) &
BEREGHIUR - HERT - BiF - 27
E BEAYBEIMERBISFLER - i
EREBCHMAEEEREAN KRS
B o MHAEREARGRABZBILIENITE

o

4t

HEIREE L - 755% - MN2012F4 8268 1EA
BUENTES REEZBEXEREZEZE
erhFHNEESSEMALARA - HELR
EHEASERBNEEAES BN REEE
B8 - BT ARREHFTEEeEE -
EREABBAANE LB K EMER - WE
1598 )N 4 2 F G5 B M3 L FIEE 2 K& R
B o BPIRDEARE  HBRPIRE KT
B LR BARUR - ST AE B KEM
AT - FIRATEAZMATHENE
Bl °



Biographical Details of Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, aged 44, joined the Company on 10
October 2012 as independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of remuneration committee, the members of audit committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Lo graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of Science (with honours) in
Computer Science in 1991. Mr. Lo is experienced in securities and
finance industry for over twenty years. He is currently the managing
director (equities) and head of institutional sales of SBI E2-Capital
Financial Services Limited. He was a director and head of institutional
sales of China Construction Bank International Securities Limited
from May 2005 to June 2006; an executive director and head of sales
of ICEA Securities Limited from June 2006 to April 2009; and an
executive director and head of sales of ICBC International Securities
Limited from April 2009 to August 2010.
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Directors’ Report
HREHRS

The Board is pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
a real estate property developer in the PRC. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are set out in note
41 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Change of Company Name

In order to provide the Company with a fresh and new corporate
image and identity, on 1 February 2012, the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting approved the change
of the Company’s name to “Sun Century Group Limited” and the
adoption of “AB5t 4L EHEPRAF]” as the Chinese name of the
Company for identification purpose only. The new name and new
Chinese name of the Company are effective commencing from 1
February 2012.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 41 and
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 42 and 43
of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil).

Use of Proceeds from the January Open Offer

The Company raised its fund by way of an open offer to issue
615,335,692 offer shares at a price of HK$0.1 on 3 January 2012,
Net proceeds from the issuance of offer shares amounted to
approximately HK$61 million (after deducting the commissions and
costs and expenses in relation to the open offer). Such net proceeds
have been used in the following manner:
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Amount used
as at the date
of this report

Amount raised RAZ#EHE B
E58e CBHRAZSHE
(HK$ million) (HKS$ million)
AEET BEBT
General corporate and working capital —RTENEEESHE
purpose 61 61
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Directors’ Report

R

Use of Proceeds from the Issuance of Convertible
Note

The Company entered into an agreement to issue a convertible note
with principal amount of HK$30,000,000 and initial conversion price
of HK$0.1228 on 20 January 2012. Net proceeds from the issuance
of convertible note amounted to approximately HK$29 million (after
deducting the costs and expenses in relation to the issuance of
convertible note). Such net proceeds have been used in the following
manner:
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Amount used
as at the date
of this report

Amount raised RAZX#RE B
B8 CFERAZEE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
BEAET BEAT
General corporate and working capital —fhE¥RLEES AR
purpose 29 29

Use of Proceeds from September Open Offer

On 5 September 2012, the Company proposed to raise not less
than approximately HK$313 million before expenses and the set-off
with the shareholder’s loan by issuing not less than 1,254,184,050
offer shares and not more than 1,320,181,518 offer shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.25 per offer share on the basis of six offer
shares for every one share of the Company on the record date (27
December 2012). The proposed open offer has been completed on 9
January 2013 and the net proceeds from the open offer amounted to
approximately HK$244 million (after deducting the cost and expenses
in relation to the open offer and the set-off with the shareholder’s
loan). Details of the open offer please refer to the announcement
dated 5 September 2012 and the circular dated 16 November 2012.
Such net proceeds have been used in the following manner:

IR AMBREMSRENAE
M2012F9A5H » AR A EHIZN A
(2012512 A27H) BB 1IN I &6
BERG 2 EE  UERFERKH.25E T

R BT TP ,254,184,0500% 2 & f%
B REAZ1,320,181,518AX B EAX1D - F it
E £ DF#1313,000,0008 7T (F1 5 2 &
IR E R - REFEAMBEDR2013
F1AIHTHN - RHEEMBRBEFELAY
244,000,000/ 7T (BB BE AR EERK
ARFALERIKERREER) - BEAFAEE
MEES » B2HMBHA2012F9 A5 M
N2012FF 11 A16 H AV K © :ZPT1S 5B F5E
BERNUTHAEA

Amount used
as at the date
of this report

Amount raised AR E B
EfEe CFERAZEHE
HK$ million HK$ million
AEET BEBTT
The deposits for the acquisition of WELHETEEREEREF AT
the entire equity interest in Anhui 2E®
Longsheng Property Development
Company Limited 244 -
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Directors’ Report

HHT R

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Reserves
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 34 to the financial statements
respectively.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium, capital reserve and accumulated losses. The Company’s
reserves available for distribution to the shareholders at 31
December 2012 were approximately RMB514,658,000 (2011:
RMB670,769,000).

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB2,000 (2011: RMB1,403,000).

Investment Properties
Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers taken together accounted for 34.03% and 54.11% of the
aggregate of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers taken together accounted for 48.59% and 74.08% of the
Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of the said
top five customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.
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Directors’ Report

HHT RS

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHAU Cheok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. ZENG Yunshu (retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar (resigned on 31 July 2012)
Ms. YEUNG So Mui

Ms. CHENG Mei Ching

Ms. YEUNG So Lai

Mr. LEUNG Ming Ho (resigned on 31 July 2012)

Mr. QIU Bin (appointed on 19 June 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. LI Jun (retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam (retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Yu (retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. LUI Man Wah (appointed on 20 February 2012 and
resigned on 31 July 2012)

Mr. TOU Kin Chuen (appointed on 26 April 2012)

Dr. WU Kam Fun Roderick (appointed on 26 April 2012)

Mr. LO Wai Tung John (appointed on 10 October 2012)

Biographical Details of the Directors
The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page
13 to page 15 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report

HHT R

Directors’ Service Contracts and Rotation

The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. All of the executive Directors
do not entered any service contract with the Company. All of the
independent non-executive Directors has entered a service contract
with the Company for a term of 3 years and is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company and the Corporate Government Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Qin Bin (who was appointed during the year), Mr.
Chau Cheok Wa, Ms. Yeung So Mui and Ms. Cheng Mei Ching shall
retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or
has proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note
12 to financial statements.

Annual Confirmation from Independent
Non-executive Directors

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of their independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and both the Board and the
nomination committee considered that all independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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Directors’ Report

R

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) (the “Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

EERRM - HEROZESFPZ
s

R2012%F12A31H » EERARQAISHE T
R EE (RFEHF RBEEA([EFHERPEK
Bl ) EXVELZ RE ) ([HEEERE ) 2B -
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Long Position in the Shares of the Company REQXATRBZHFE
Percentage
of aggregate
Number of interests to
underlying total number
shares of shares
Number of shares held under in issue*
REAHE equity %
derivatives s
Personal Family Corporate BRATE HERTRA
interests interests interests T EEHEIEE Total #AZCHIL
Name of Director EEfE B AER RS ARER B2 8E @t %
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa BleELrE - - 46,150,200" 1,320,181,518°  1,366,331,718 653.65%
Ms. Yeung So Mui BEaigRt - 46,150,200 - 1,320,181,518°  1,366,331,718 653.65%

Notes:

1. This represents interests held by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa through Fame Select Limited
(“Fame Select”), which holds 46,150,200 shares of the Company. Mr. Chau Cheok
Wa has 50% interest in Fame Select, he is therefore deemed to be interested in
46,150,200 shares of the Company.

2. This represents interests held by Mr. Cheng Ting Kong through Fame Select, which
holds 46,150,200 shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng Ting Kong has 50% interest
in Fame Select. Ms. Yeung So Mui is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Ting Kong and she is
therefore deemed to be interested in 46,150,200 shares of the Company.

3.  This represents interests in the underwriting agreement entered by Fame Select on
5 September 2012 to underwrite the offer shares of the Company.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2012 (i.e. 209,030,675 shares).
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HHT R

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
Associated Corporations which had been entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance
Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
in this report and in note 40 to the financial statements, no other
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares and Debentures
As at 31 December 2012, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme to the
Directors to subscribe for shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code is set out in the section headed “Share Option” of
this report below.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the Company
or its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report

R

Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of

the Company

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of those persons (other than
the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

REARNFARER 2 EERES

Number of
underlying
shares held
under equity

R2012F12A31H * RARAIRGOEBIRIE
BELHE G FE336IEA NG BEFE ZER
ARtk EZ 2 ZEAT(ESBRINGOT ¢

Percentage
of shares to
total number of
shares in issue*

derivatives %

Capacity in which Number of ERATET ROGERITRE
Name shares were held shares BiEG1EE BEzEDE
=x RFBERGZE54G R&GOEE igviged - d=| %
Fame Select Beneficial owner 46,150,200(L)" 1,320,181,518° 653.65%
BE EmlEEA
Green Auspice Limited Beneficial owner 21,653,663(L)? - 10.36%
AR T] EmBEAA
L: Long position t¥&
S: Short position &
Notes: FitzE -

1. Fame Select owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and 50% by Mr. Cheng Ting 1.
Kong. As such, Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong were deemed to be
interested in 46,150,200 shares of the Company held by Fame Select.

EIEEREMB T BLEESQBEFLENE0% M
Et - FIEEEEMB T BAERERSRBEREN
A2 E)46,150,200 0 A AR o

2. Green Auspice Limited was wholly owned by Ms. So Sok Ngo. As such, Ms. So Sok 2.
Ngo was deemed to be interested in 21,653,663 shares of the Company held by

BEARAFHENRLT2ERR - ALt - RS
KR AR A RIF B AR F21,653,663 B 17 + #
Green Auspice Limited. B o

3.  This represents interests in the underwriting agreement entered by Fame Select on 3.
5 September 2012 to underwrite the offer shares of the Company.

IR AR 2012F9 A5 AT UM B H R B HEA
REIBERD 2

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the *
Company in issue as at 31 December 2012 (i.e. 209,030,675 shares).

AL BEREBEAARN20129F12A31BE T2
1 482k (B1209,030,6750% ) fEH A% -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

B EXXATREESN - 2012812 A31H » &
RNE| W EENERARE &G RABRERD P
HBEREBESRHAEKOIFEIBBRAFECE
M PTRRER 2 (EREE SR A o

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of
public float of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules up to the date of this report.

NRERE
REARNBMERREMERESFRMN - K
REIEAREBHPABTE LWRAARE
ARREFLZ R ADFIRE
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Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Share Option

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholder’s written resolution of the Company.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of,
and permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may fall to
be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted and/
or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme, subsequently.

As at 31 December 2012, a total of 2,899,578 share options were
granted under the Share Option Scheme outstanding.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(A) Share Option Scheme
Purpose
Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@) any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or
a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

(c) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,

consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
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Share Option (Cont’d)
(A) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)
Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(@) the nominal value of the share;

(b) the closing price of one share on the Stock Exchange at the
offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the
percentage of the issued shares capital that it represents
as at the date of this annual report

10,402,500 shares, being approximately 0.71% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under
the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$10.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

e 16 )
(A) RIRfET 8 ()

TIEE
REFEET  BETBERUTZ&
E

i

(@) Mty zmEiE

(o) RBEEAHARERE)BNEBR
Pz SR E - &

() E#EZTE BHA RIES % BRI R
R FHWTE -

A T BB R AN F 3 H B 2

FITR I BT

10,402,500 (&l 1n - (AR BIE 81T
P 490.71% o

BHSHEZREGAH
THEBRER2(EABEC #TRH
1% o

WRIEZ R ERIEE 5 2 HIR
MEFEMBEET  MALEEE @ B
MAHEEERABRRM B BEH
HERFM10F (ARBELEERE) -
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Share Option (Cont’d) IR (&)
(A) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) (A) ERRESTEI(/E)
Remaining life of the scheme ZErE| B T EA
The scheme will be valid and effective until 31 January 2017, ZtEBERRBREZE 201741 A 31
after which no further options will be granted but the provisions B &SR BT ARAE - B
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other T IEXRETAEEM S E G HE+ 2%
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing HRBER - RZT2HRAEHBERNEE
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme and 2017F1 A1 BRI ARETFEERFE E™
remain unexercised immediately prior to 31 January 2017 shall HMEBMEST R - B EERERE Y
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of BHEGERTAITE - BEZE 2 ERE
grant, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme. JEim °
(B) Movements of the Share Option Scheme (B) RBRETEIZEE
Movements of the share options, which were granted under the HE2012F12A31HIEFEN @ BIER
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December 2012 PEEt 2R E AR EESH T (TR E
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing FTRBIE7.0716EY)) -
Rules:
During the year
ER
Adjustment
ok
Share
Adjustment
due to open Lapsed/
Date of offer Share  cancelled Exercise Exercise
grant  Asat’®  Granted Exercised AMXEEX consolidaion  BAR/  AsatB price period
Category %5l REBH 112012 ERH BEE  HRAEE  RGEH THE 81122012 %M (kL)
Continuous  HE&H 15.05.2007 12,935,000 - - 3146364 (14,473.224)  (1,441,536) 166,594 14.80 15.11.2007 -
Contract 8 14.05.2017
Employees
10.10.2007 1,000,000 - - 240,664 (1,116,598) - 124,066 2410 10.04.2008 -
09.10.2017
Consultants  F&f 15.05.2007 13,000,000 - - 3,162,160  (14,545,943) - 1616217 14.80 15.11.2007 -
14,06.2017
13.02.2008 8,000,000 - - 1,927,007 (8,934,306 - 992,701 1370 13.08.2008 -
12.08.2018
Former AftES
Director
Or.lidn  ZEEL 15052007 1,000,000 - - 243243 (1118919 (124324) - 14,80 15.11.2007 -
14,05.2017
Mr.Cheung  FRMEE  15.05.2007 1,000,000 - - 23243 (1118919 (124324) - 1480 15.11.2007 -
Ngai Lam 14.06.2017

Total st 36,935,000 - 8,962,671 (41,307,909 (1,690,184 2,899,678
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Share Option (Cont’d)
(B) Movements of the Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. The vesting period for all the options granted is six months from the date of
acceptance of the offer.

2.  The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of
right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

3. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses/retained
profits.

Pension Schemes

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in form of
contributions to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong
Kong’s Mandatory Provident Funds respectively.

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to requirements of the Listing Rules.
Other transactions which exempted from the requirements of the
Listing Rule are also disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements
as related party transactions.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Save as disclosed in above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

IR (&)

(B) R ET 8 225 (H)

1. FEEERNRBEZEBHAMBEARL AL
HEteEA -

2. REEZTEEHEEHEBRETOREIAR
BB Z BRI BT 1E h F2E
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Auditor

On 6 January 2011, KPMG, who acted as auditor of the Company for
the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2009, resigned and
RSM Nelson Wheeler was appointed as auditor of the Company.

On 3 November 2011, RSM Nelson Wheeler, who acted as auditor
of the Company for the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December
2010, resigned and Andes Glacier CPA Limited was appointed as
auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy and hold office until
the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Andes Glacier CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the

Annual General Meeting to re-appoint Andes Glacier CPA Limited, as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

28 March 2013
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The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices, as amended from time to time (the
“Code”), as stated in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing
Rules”). As far as the Code is concerned, the Company complies with
all aspects of the Code during the year ended 31 December 2012 and
up to the date of the announcement.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company had complied with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. After making inquiry of the Directors, the Company confirmed
that the directors of the Company had complied with the provisions of
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors.

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of whom five are
Executive Directors, and three are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and
experience necessary for decision making and fulfilling its business
needs. The participation of Non-Executive Directors in the Board
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and management process
to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have
been duly considered.

The Board considers that all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent and has received from each of them the
annual confirmation of independence required by the Listing Rules.

Details of the biographies of the directors are given under the section
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this Annual Report. Except for
Ms. Yeung So Mui is the sister of Ms. Yeung So Lai and is the sister-
in-law of Ms. Cheng Mei Ching, members of the Board is unrelated to
each other.

RAREHMEEBERIMERRFES
EWHRRAT EmARR ) M ER14FTE A b 3
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The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the ZEe B SEH RERAKER I BEEIEL
Group’s overall strategies and policies; approval of business % @ BEHEBAE THAEEB 2 RB A
plans; evaluating the performance of the Group and oversight of REE  -EZ @/ BERAEELREERND
management. It is also responsible for promoting the success of B2 EHMBEHAAD T R E LK FEIELS -
the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising the

Company’s affairs.

EESRINEBRE MG
AEBZEREIMBRR

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular WHERDEE

attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to Executive ZEEHe@EAEEB Y LB TFHTETURE
Directors and senior management of every business segment, while THEK 7 SHNEERE  BETEZTEEHE|N
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board ZEREE=eit/k -EES s AT FEAL
are communicated to the management through Executive Directors FEE@ 7 HTESHEIEEER -

who have attended Board meetings.

ARARERAGSHEEZNSABELHEE
ZEERE  UWREERAREHMELZ

The Company had arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities

arising from corporate activities. FE -
Board meeting AGM*
Attended/Held Attended/Held
EEEER RRBFAE*
Directors =3 HEBITZRE HEBITZRE
Executive Directors: HITES .
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa BlREE S E 10/15 0/1
Mr. Zeng Yunshu BERIAE
(retired on 1 June 2012) (720126 A1HIERMT) 2/9 N/A
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar FEKLE
(resigned on 31 July 2012) (F20129F7 A31 B #E) 11/11 1/1
Ms. Yeung So Mui BRgZT 10/15 0/1
Ms. Cheng Mei Ching B2 10/15 0/1
Ms. Yeung So Lai BEBLZT 15/15 1/1
Mr. Leung Ming Ho REES A
(resigned on 31 July 2012) (201247 A31 BEHL) 10/11 0/1
Mr. Qiu Bin BB 5 4
(appointed on 19 June 2012) (201266 A19REZE ) 5/5 N/A
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Board meeting AGM*
Attended/Held Attended/Held
EEggR BRRBFAE*
Directors BE HEBITZRE HE A BITZRE
Independent Non-Executive BIYFHITEE
Directors:
Dr. Li Jun FEELT
(retired on 1 June 2012) (20126 A1HIRT) 3/9 N/A
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam SRIRIRIE A
(retired on 1 June 2012) (F2012F6 A1HIEM) 3/9 N/A
Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu ok BI#E 78 A
(retired on 1 June 2012) (F2012F6 A1 HEMA) 3/9 N/A
Mr. Lui Man Wah B EEA
(appointed on 20 February 2012 and (201252 A20 B EZEIH
resigned on 31 July 2012) 201247 A31 HEHE) 2/6 0/1
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen MEEFEE
(appointed on 26 April 2012) (F2012F4 A26 HEZET) 3/7 0/1
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick HRiREE -
(appointed on 26 April 2012) (201294 A26 B ER(T) 4/7 0/1
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EEREA
(appointed on 10 October 2012) (PA2012F10 108 B ZE1E) 0/1 N/A
2012 AGM held on 1 June 2012 * 2012F IRERBF NG R2012F6 A1 HEAT

Regular Board meetings are attended to by a majority of the directors
in person or through other electronic means of communication.
Besides the regular Board meetings, special Board meetings are
convened from time to time for the Board to discuss major matters
that require the Board’s timely attention. As some of the special
Board meetings are concerned with the day-to-day management of
the Company which often requires prompt decisions, usually only the
executive directors attend. During 2012, apart from holding Board
meetings, the Board also passed resolutions in writing to approve
certain matters.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors were responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibility are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

REPEEREIEBEMEFBATA L
FeEHEZEeZ KREHEETeH
Sh - KRR ENKARFHNEFTES SR
AMEFEARKREZ TEFRE - AN
MEHNEEEEZ SN ARAZATER
FEARFELRE  WEEREHTESH
& o M2012%F » RBITEFEEEHN  EF
ENEUNEMRBARMEETER -
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E=ZeBERERIEZ=2012F12A318 1L
FEZHBRE BESHRAINGBERRZECL
A RAZERE 2 EEEH R B AABERE o
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Internal Controls

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective internal
control system in order to protect the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Board and audit committee also
conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system. The internal control system includes a well-
established corporate structure and organisation with clearly defined
lines of responsibility and authority. Each department is responsible
for its daily operations, and is also required to implement and monitor
the strategies and polices adopted by the Board and effective
employment of the resources of the Company, in order to avoid
misappropriation of resources and damages made to the Company’s
assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.

The Board and audit committee assess the effectiveness of the
internal control system and procedures based on information derived
from discussions with the management of the Company and its
external auditor. The Board and audit committee believe that the
existing internal control system is adequate and effective.

The review covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions as well as
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its management
staff within the Group. The Group has a defined goal for each
department to accomplish, these goals were discussed in the Board
meeting and pass on to the management through the executive
directors. These goals will be implemented and closely monitored by
the executive directors who shall review the operational and financial
results from time to time, and to take any necessary actions for the
improvement of it business activities.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa is the chairman of the Company. The Chairman’s
responsibility is to oversee the functioning of the Board and the
strategies and policies of the Group. Ms. Yeung So Lai is the chief
executive officer of the Company. The chief executive officer’s
responsibility is to monitor the daily operation and management of the
Company.
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Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction training so
as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and of his/her duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices. In addition, the Company has been
encouraging the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance and corporate governance practices organized by
professional bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training
records pursuant to the Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and refresh their knowledge and skills during the year.
Such professional development was completed either by way of
attending briefings, conference, forum, courses and seminars and
self-reading which are relevant to the business or directors duties.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Luk Chi Keung, a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The company secretary assists the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that Board policy and
procedures are followed. Mr. Luk has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in 2012.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring that the
Company has formal and transparent procedures for developing and
overseeing its policies on the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. The committee’s authorities and duties are set out in
written terms of reference.

5 remuneration committee meetings were held during the year ended
31 December 2012. Members of the remuneration committee and the

attendance of each member are set out below:

Committee members

FMEES

FNEZE SRR RRARREAS LA NER
WEF FEREEEFTRSMREIEEHMH
ZBER - ZZBENREMBEHNEER
RBERA -

HMEEENEHE2012F12A31H ILFEL
TR EH - FHZESKEMEEZHES
FNEESIT

Attended/Held

EE8ERE HE BT
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John (Chairman) ERRLEAE(EE) 0/0
Dr. Li Jun FIEH L 3/3
Mr. Zeng Yunshu BENE L& 2/3
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REAMITE 3/3
Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu RIS 2 A 3/3
Mr. Lui Man Wah B ESE A 2/3
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen M RE 2/2
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick [EEGET)E 2/2

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(i) to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of Directors;

(i) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, and to make recommendations on the
remuneration of the non-executive Directors for the Board’s
approval;

(iii) to review and propose performance-based remuneration
for executive Directors by reference to corporate goals and

objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv) to administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company’s share option scheme.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee is responsible to make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of
the Board’s succession. The committee’s authorities and duties are
set out in written terms of reference.

5 nomination committee meetings were held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2012. Members of the nomination committee

and the attendance of each member are set out below:

Committee members

REZEES
REZEGAERZEEENEFSHUEE
ERNEESRLEBER - ZB@ZRER
BEHNEmBERE -

BEZEECREE2012F12A31B ILFEEE
115X EE - REZEEKERELEEEHENX
HHETIAT ¢

Attended/Held

ZEBRE HE S RIT
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick (Chairman) AR ENE L (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu KRB ST 3/3
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RIS A 3/3
Dr. Li Jun FIEEBL 3/3
Mr. Lui Man Wah ANESRE 2/3
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen T EE 2/2
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EREREE 0/0

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

(if) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman
and the chief executive officer.

REZBEENBELBENA AR MU EH -
TEBERE

(i) EHRNESENRE - RERAK
(B - ANBNER) Rt EA 2
EPEANEFSRIERRS

(ii) e EEaEERTETES ZA
T RERREHTESZ ALK
MEREESROERER

(i)  FHEBRLIFATEROELE K

vy HEBZEXENZTEFTULES
(TEREFE R (TTHARE) #E 2
HRAEEREFSROEBER -
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Audit Committee
2 audit committee meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2012. Attendance of the Members is set out below:

Committee members

EREE®
%@éhaﬁﬁﬁmmﬁmﬂmaﬁﬁﬁﬂ
T2 g% - KEHEEHEEHNWT ¢

Attended/Held

ZEGRE HE BT
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen (Chairman) MEETFEE(EE) 11
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RIS A 1/1
Dr. Li Jun FIEEL 1/1
Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu KRBT E 11
Mr. Lui Man Wah ANESLE 0N
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick HARBNIE L 1/1
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EREREE 0/0

The terms of reference of the audit committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(i) to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Company’s external
auditor, and to evaluate their independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process;

(if) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial
statements, reports and accounts of the Company, and to
review significant and judgemental financial reporting issues
contained therein;

(i) to review the Company'’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management systems; and

(iv) to discuss with the management the system of internal
controls, and to ensure that the management has discharged
its duties and responsibilities in implementing an effective
internal control system.

The Group’s 2012 interim report and 2012 annual report have
been reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the opinion
that such reports were prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements. For the 2012 annual report,
the audit committee met with the external auditor to discuss auditing,
internal control, statutory compliance and financial reporting matters
before recommending it to the Board for approval. The committee
also monitored the Company’s progress in implementing the code
provisions on corporate governance practices as required under the
Listing Rules.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid/payable to
auditor in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided by
the auditor to the Group were as follows:

REE &
HE2012F12A31BLFE - XA
AEBREHMOZERBE LEZERE M
F/TEN T8 BRI T

2012 2011
Nature of services RMB’000 RMB’000
REME ARET T ARETTT
Audit ZE
— Current year —AFE 1,136 1,216
— Under provision in prior year —AAFETREE - 130
Others Hi 429 684
1,565 2,030
COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND HERERREEER

INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information which enables
shareholders and investors to make a properly informed investment
decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.sun1383.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Company’s Articles of Association affecting its
operations and reporting practices.

ARAEEEERREYER  ZRAKRES
RN NEREESAREEBERA LK
B2 7 RREE N R SR o AR EURBE AR A
FAEBERERRER  ZBERRREEFL
REMBHRERENERN

ARBEENBREREE 2 BBRBE - K
AlERARENEEZER - WIRHEEH

é{ﬂ c REEERAMEMENR  ATERREHA

NGIESE R Sk

RNARABNEEBER BRE—EFL
(www.sun1383.com) ' RIERKEEH - BIE
ERARAIEBRERLEE MHKER @&
EEREHREMER  HARBE -

EXCHR FARRZERMANTEZE
HEERBRRERERNEE -
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company by sending a written
notice to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong, shall convene an extra-
ordinary general meeting to address specific issues of the Company
within 21 days from the date of deposit of written notice. The same
requirement and procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled
at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meeting or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
shareholders of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out
in the notice of general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general
meeting is enclosed with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend
or are unable to be present at the meeting should fill out the form
and return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, so as to appoint a representative, another shareholder or
the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUN CENTURY GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS HONG LONG HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Andes Glacier CPA Limited

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

A B3t 65 47T A )

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun Century
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 128 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Unit 1, 20/Floor, No. 50 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BT ST ITEL0 SRR KE201201 =

BABHREMERAT
(BIBRRERRERA ) RE
ZBIRBERE
(REASHBEMA L BERAF])
REMBRERESE

Az EEN (AT [HM]) EEZINERE
HEZEF128BAGHALEEBRAR([ER
ADRENBAR(H#EEEE ) MWEEEH
MK - WERE U EMREIEN2012F12 A
1AM AEMBEANREEEZBALEFEDN
REEEBER  SKAEREHRIGER
EHREXR  UERETEZECHERRMEREMH
&R o

EENGAMBHRRAAENSE

BERAEFERABARBBE LGRS RM
MEBMBRELERREECRBED) BE
BERRREEMAFNEEMBERER - N
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FEMR AR BLAR A M ISR Y B E A FE AR B (1
e A MEF R o) -

BB N EME
BFNETERBERMANEZSZSEAY
BHREFEHER - BPIERE B E N B &
A BRIRREE o BRULASN - BFIIRE
ETAIREEMAR -  RABIRARES
MAR  HEFEMATEEHABEZER
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EERETERZ BLERZRREMEST
BEAE  WREIRAITER  UEERTE
HEFRAMBHRERE TN FETAERER
fRat -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Andes Glacier CPA Limited
Hsu Yuk King, Mercedes
Practising Certificate Number: P03548

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

h‘/j‘ F[ = Y E ['Iﬁﬁlli%
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z%E2012F12A318 L F &
2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR®T ARBTTT
Turnover 20 6 324,669 324,494
Cost of sales SHE A (129,183) (270,857)
Gross profit EF 195,486 53,637
Other net income/(expenses) Ha A/ (Z ) F5E 7 134,773 (3,801)
Selling and distribution expenses iﬁ’%& D85 & (13,568) (7,390)
General and administrative expenses —M AT ER (54,675) (54,544)
Other operating expenses HihZiEE A (329,288) (233,344)
Net increase/(decrease) in fair value of R EWEH AL ER
investment properties a0 R ) E%8 17 293,570 (752,000)
Impairment loss on inventories FEZREEE (48,000) (260,506)
Profit/(Loss) from operations rERw,(F8) 178,298 (1,257,948)
Net change in fair value of derivative MEEBRITANARERN
financial instruments )5 8 14,267
Finance costs LA B 9 (185,982) (156,023)
Gain on derecognition of available-for- — #2|FFER A Mt HHE S FIEE
sale financial assets gy - 33,306
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTB AR Mk 17,719 81,873
Impairment loss on subsidiaries group D 4EAFIELE 2 EBEE
classified as held for sale 2 R EEE 24(a) - (8,861)
Profit/(Loss) before tax BB AR (EE) 10,043 (1,293,386)
Income tax credit FTiS B 10 29,277 175,259
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive 7~ EFl, (E5i8) &
income/(expense) for the year 2wl (BX) B 39,320 (1,118,127)
Attributable to: U AL FE(h -
Owners of the Company RARHEB A 39,320 (1,118,121)
Non-controlling interests FEIER 2 - (6)
39,320 (1,118,127)
RMB cents RMB cents
AR S AR5
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings/(Loss) per share BREF,(HA) 15
Basic and diluted BEARREE 6.12 (290.27)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B B IR DR

At 31 December 2012 #2012 12A31H

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5T ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KR 16 7,676 3,836
Investment properties WEME 17 1,080,000 780,000
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBEE B 30 3,505 8,924
1,091,181 792,760
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 1,585,656 1,273,475
Trade and other receivables JFE LS BR SR % At FE U 3R 19 681,341 760,199
Consideration receivables FEWRERR 20 - 75,603
Trading securities BEERS 21 2,130 2,296
Pledged deposits HIRF 22 1,155 1,078
Bank and cash balances IRITRIA 8 23 14,068 49,049
2,284,350 2,161,700
Subsidiaries group classified as DEAFELHEZ
held for sale — assets WEEE - EE 24 - 447,108
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables, FERBRRR - HAhEN X
and accruals NIERE A 25 561,558 963,766
Receipts in advance TE U AR 3K 26 14,816 18,046
Rental and other deposits HEREMEZS 27 28,934 11,768
Derivative financial liabilities MEESBARE 28 - 8
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMER 29 1,803,822 865,957
Current tax liabilities BNEAFIE & (& 19,431 138,414
2,428,561 1,997,959
Subsidiaries group classified as DEARFEREZ
held for sale — liabilities WBEE—a& 24 - 201,408
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE)  BEZHE (144,211) 409,441
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEAERAEBAS 946,970 1,202,201
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 29 - 447,000
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIRAE 30 176,250 98,091
176,250 545,091
NET ASSETS EEFHE 770,720 657,110
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B B AR DL

At 31 December 2012 201212 A31H

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T ARETT
Capital and reserves

Share capital 31 18,949 11,971
Reserves 34 751,771 645,139

Equity attributable to owners NAEIHE AEGER
of the Company 770,720 657,110
Non-controlling interests - -
TOTAL EQUITY 770,720 657,110

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2013

Chau Cheok Wa

Bias

Director

EF

EEEMN2013F3 A28 At AW IFHET 3 -

Yeung So Lai
HRE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B A RERR T3

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2012412 A31 AL FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATERAER
(Accumulated
losses)/
Convertible retained Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory Capital  notes reserve profits controlling Total

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve TR (RitEE)/ Total interests equity

Re  BEE  AHRE  EERRE  EARE RERE  REEA Bt FBRER  EneE

Notes RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

fizt ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETn ARBTr  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR

At1 January 2011 HAMEIAIR 197 TeS6M 427 M99 176 - Wek 1775t W 17762

Loss and total comprehensive ~ AEEEER

expense for the year 2ERMLEE - - - - - - (8121 (1118121) 6 (1,118127)
Disposal of subsiciaries HENBAR 3 - - - - - - - - (989) 989)
Changeinequiyfortheyear  AEEEREE) - - - - - - (18121 (1118121) (09)  (1,119,116)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12831A 11971 765,604 24,007 49373 17,694 - (211,759 657,110 - 657,110
Proft and tota TEERHR

comprehensive income 2ENGEE

forthe year - - - - - - 39,320 39,320 - 39,320
Issue of shares ¥kt 4,901 44,807 - - - - - 49,888 - 49,888
Equty componert of EREE

comvertble notes ZERHH kY - - - - - 6911 - 6911 - 6,911
Conversion of covertble notes  JATTARER ki 1,987 2415 - - - (6.911) - 17491 - 17491
Share option canceled B 35(0) - - - - (6372 - 6,372 - - -
Changenequiy rtheyer  AEEEREE 6078 67312 - - 6372 - 456 113610 - H3sM0
At 31 December 2012 R2012612531A 18,949 832,916 24221 49373 11,322 - (166,067) 770,720 - 710,720
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBRERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z2012F12 A31 A L F[Z

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥ET T AREET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit/(Loss) before tax BR&E AT A, (E518) 10,043 (1,293,386)
Adjustments for: FHEIER
Interest income A EHBA (52) (3,142)
Finance costs A& AN 185,982 156,023
Amortisation and depreciation g NI E 2,769 2,731
Impairment loss on trade and other JE UK BR 3% R L i JE L BR X
receivables VEREN R 196,336 -
Provision for impairment on FEAS 1 Hb A 2N B R (B B 1
prepaid land cost 27,540 =
Reversal of impairment on other [0 E A FE R BORUE
receivables (45,000) -
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HEDE  BEK
plant and equipment =il (BE) (136) 20,714
Gain on derecognition of BIEFERAHEE
available-for-sale financial assets S REBEENKE - (33,306)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEW B AR/ 36(a) (17,719) (81,873)
Net (increase)/decrease in fair value of & WEHA 7 EH
investment properties (3gm),/mAFEE (293,570) 752,000
Net change in fair value of derivative PTESRITANARERN
financial instruments BB R (8) (14,267)
Net realised and unrealised (gain)/loss on B & &5 &) B3R & AR B IR
trading securities (Yezx), /B BT (241) 764
Impairment loss on inventories FE 2 RERE 48,000 260,506
Operating profit/(loss) before working ZE& &S EAI KL
capital changes R (EE) 113,944 (238,236)
Increase in inventories FEIE N (104,930) (236,893)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other JFE Ukt BR Tk Kz EL At JE UG =R
receivables B, (38 ) 48,588 (200,904)
(Increase)/Decrease in pledged deposits  #IRF (3800), 74 (77) 1,615
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and FERTERFR ~ AR R
other payables, and accruals FEIRE H O 4 ) /180 (587,895) 730,369
(Decrease)/Increase in receipts in advance TUKBE 2k (R 4>) /2 0 (3,230) 69,122
Increase/(Decrease) in rental and HERHEAMES
other deposits #mn,/ CRsd) 17,166 (24)
Cash (used in)/generated from EE(BH) ELENES
operations (516,434) 130,049
Income tax paid BEETEHR (6,441) (23,819)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEH(FH) ELE
operating activities WESFE (522,875) 106,230
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AT |—| fﬂ UlL%’J{

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z20126F12 A31 A L F[Z

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5T AR®T AREET T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E W% - MENME G (6,905) (2,9006)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - BE K& HE

plant and equipment Fri5 k18 389 6,796
Decrease in consideration receivables FEW R BRI 75,603 88,927
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYESRIE

properties - 60,000
Proceeds from sale of trading securities & B B &5 FT15308 407 =
Proceeds from derecognition of RItERAIHEESHEE

available-for-sale financial assets Fr{S k18 - 272,098
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B A a] 36(a) 116,316 139,193
Interest received BB 52 3,142
Net cash generated from investing KEEEEENIRES TR

activities 185,862 567,250
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R EE
Drawdown of bank loans REERTTE R 1,016,204 230,357
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (522,339) (783,980)
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes %47 Al A& Z 42 ~ FT15 5418 32 24,402 =
Proceeds from issue of shares TR FT1S FRIE 49,888 -
Interest paid B FE (273,695) (156,023)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEHEL(HH)K

financing activities & )55 294,460 (709,646)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH H&EREBELZEWHRD

EQUIVALENTS HEE (42,553) (36,166)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1A1ENEERESEEY

AT 1 JANUARY 56,621 92,787
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12A31EEERASEEY

AT 31 DECEMBER 14,068 56,621
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ReRRSEB/YIN

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances R1TRIA S S 14,068 49,049
Bank and cash balances classified DEAFERECWBEE

as assets of subsidiaries group BEZBTARELE

classified as held for sale - 7,572

14,068 56,621
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1.

General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is Room 2101-2109, Tower F,
Xihaimingchu Building, No. 1 Taoyuan Road, Nan Shan District,
Shenzhen 518052, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
financial statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKTCPA”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial period beginning 1st January, 2012.

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters

Disclosures — Transfers of

Financial Assets

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of

Underlying Assets

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

—RER
ARRIRAEHESFMALAERA
a) o o ffft B = B &Y #b 4k iz X Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, the Cayman Islands ° &= & & ¥
Bt AP EARKMB(HE])E
RAERYIELREERSRESAZRA
[EFEE2101-2109% - 47 /518052 °
RARAWRDNEBHMERGMERA
AI([BE22FT]) EMR £ o

ARARRREERLT  HXEHNBA
A EBEBHN MMM ELT

AR EBHBERE
ZA([BFBMEHREER ]
RAFER  AEEHREATIIHRSE
Bartiag((EEe:tMAag ) Bk
RIFTER] - BRI RRE([ AT B R
LKA ]) - ZEFB B IEREERIE
AREER201241 A1 B 5ts 2 B B EARS
AR e

BRUBMEE BRESBKRIIIG

A5 BRERAER
(BFTA) & € A

EEMIERELE BRE-EENBEE
BIIZE75%
(BETA)

EBSTERE ELEHIE - WEHE
1285 BE
CHEN)

R EM B REEINE BRI BE
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2.

48

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards or interpretations that have been issued but are not

yet effective.

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12
Amendment

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendment

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendment

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HK(FRJC) - Int 20

Annual Improvements
Project

Government Loans (b)

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities (b)

Financial Instruments (d)

Consolidated Financial Statements (b)

Joint Arrangements (b)

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities (b)

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance (b)

Investment Entities (c)

Fair Value Measurement (b)

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income (a)

Employee Benefits (b)

Separate Financial Statements (b)

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (b)

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (c)

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine (b)

Annual Improvements 2009-2011
Cycle (b)
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Cont’d)

(a) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2012.

(b) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013.
(c) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2014.
(d) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2015.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these standards
or interpretations will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial instruments classified as trading securities
and derivative financial instruments which are carried at their fair
values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their
judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB144,211,000. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
is able to operate as a going concern in the coming year after
taking into consideration the results of the fund raising activities
conducted subsequent to the end of the reporting period which
raised net proceeds of approximately RMB200,000,000 in
aggregate.

FER#HE] KRBT B RMBRE
ZR(TERMBREER]) (&)

(a) 201267 A1 Bz ERBKFE R4S
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() 2220014¢1ﬂ1EIEJZZ%:S%?@E@@EHHFETE
(d) ;§;015¢1ﬁ1EE&Z%&WSE@@E%@F&E
EERHEAZS LS RES TS Y

REB2XERMBRARELEERY
= .

TESHEE
HWERBHRERRIDBREEEHHREE
A - FEAR G RAIA R B X AT
ETRAREFBREGI 2 ERRER
ERmE - WEMBRRDIZELKAE
BRE  ITREGBEIABARIKE
ME - DBREBEEFNERTART
HEERT AFHRER -

MBHRERTIBREBM B RS ERNR
2 BEPARAETEEZRR MG
NEREZNERZFSIERBRESD
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R2012%12A318 » AEBRREAG
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases. The gain
or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Cont’d)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business Combination and Goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is re-
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(b)

()

Business Combination and Goodwill (Cont’d)

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
(v) below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency
Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency as well as
the functional currency of the principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

= Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40 years after the
date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years.

- Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

- Motor vehicles 4 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct
costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at
its fair value based on valuation by an external independent
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

If a property held for sale becomes investment property,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in profit or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Leases
The Group as lessee

(f)

(1)

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Finance leases

L eases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to a
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over the
lease term or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 3(d).

The Group as lessor

(1)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(9) Inventories
(i) Properties for future development/
under development for sale

Properties for future development/under
development for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Costs include
acquisition costs, prepaid land lease payments,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to
sale proceeds received after the reporting period
less selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion, or by estimates based on prevailing
market condition. On completion, the properties are
reclassified to properties held for sale at the then
carrying amount. Properties for future development/
under development for sale are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to

complete beyond normal operating cycle.

(i) Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of properties include
acquisition costs, prepaid land lease payments,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to
sale proceeds received after the reporting period less
selling expenses, or by estimates based on prevailing

market condition.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(i)

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s investments are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either investments classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These investments are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these investments are recognised
in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(k)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

(i)  Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

(i) Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

= the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the
guarantee contracts.
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Convertible notes issued by the Group are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or financial assets for a fixed number of the Group
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and
is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date
of the convertible note, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and amortised over
the lives of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

U

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
(iv) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

(v)  Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives are recognised in profit or loss as they
arise.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

AARMETTIIR)

3.

FTEEHE(E)
() EMEERBEATAGE)

(n)

(iv) [ENTARSN KB M5
F& A~ BR 3R B EL At FE A5 R #) F
BARBEAR  HERUER
MERREHK AT E - IR
FERMMTEEM  RUEBR
T - B ARR ©

v) BRATA
REBEFETZRATAMNUE
W ET 18 SRIBR E BT AS
N

PTESEMIA
MTESRMIASYLERAREER
DAEE - STETARAEES
REEREERER o

FEHEZHRBEE
FERBEENK L EA R 2 REELR
AEBHERSMIFEBFERR
i E - REDBEAFHELE © It
EHHENRA AT REERHE RIER
BEE(HHEMAR) AR TR
RHERTAINEG - EEEBAER
hEELAR - MO ERAEAR
DEBMEMFASERERR
BEREKHE -

EARKEAGEETS MR E M
BArEHE 2 B ER B - TR
REERE AR E &R E A KIS
NEZ IR ES - ZHBATZ
PIEEENRBEBRTE LD ER
FELE 2 R RID B ARHEL
=

DHERFIEHEZFRBEE (R
HEMAR) THIREENEIREER
RFEMRE D 2 BEER L EKA

e

Annual Report 2012 — & — —FF 1 61



Notes to the Financial Statements

o 25 o B e

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (& BB Frigsh - UARETIIR)

3.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(o) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(i)  Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyers.
The Group considers that the significant risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred when the
properties are completed and delivered to the
buyers. Revenue from sales of properties excludes
business tax and other sales related taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the statement of financial position under receipts in
advance.

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the operating
leases. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned. Rental income excludes
business tax or other sales related taxes.

(iii)  Property management income
Revenue from property management is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

(iv) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of
the investment goes ex-dividend.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(o)
(v)
(9)]
(i)
(ii)
(i)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

The Group contributes to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, to the extent that they are not capitalised as
inventories.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(a)

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at fair value (excluding the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions, with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and recognised as expense.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in capital reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
capital reserve will be transferred to (accumulated losses)/
retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs (Cont’d)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(s)

(t)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and
all property development expenditures. LAT is recognised
as an income tax. LAT paid is a deductible expense for
PRC corporate income tax purposes.

Sun Century Group Limited AR5 42 S @H R A 5

AARMETTHIR)

3.

TESTBR(E)

(s)

(t)

BiIE (&)
BELEREAERRENMEARE
EZRERVEREZHER - B
FEAN 52 [ B 122 I 488 [0 B B 1 22 FE A
R BB R AT SR R A
[E] o

BELERAEE REERNSREH
RO YEBEHIEAE
R HRER B M 3K 2 BB BB 10 3
ER R, °

BELERBEIATERNEEAENE
REEEHMER RS HARAICHEM
KEBERMZHEE - BEHA
EREEER - MECHEED R
H{th 2 i 2 Bk B IR O a5 P RERR
ZEB BRI - EUBERT -
EEFBRTEREMEEKSE
BT RER o

B ATE AT AR K RV EIR IR &
ERNBHAREEN  AmER
R—HRBHBEBE RS AR -
AN B R F R A A A B AR
REENAE - AAEHEEERIA
BEIAR

o B £ 3t R A ([ L 3B 1)
PR IRER R T WEED
o - LA RE T E30% E60% 5T
8 RIHEWESFIER AR
X BRELHAR - FEEKE -
BEVRNMEMERRFAX - i
BERERSAEN - DN THE
ERRPBECEMEHRMN S 2R H
HFE o



Notes to the Financial Statements

S R =k O 2
Fo 75 i 3 B
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (& B & FTE4) -

3.

AARMETTIIR)

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(u)

A)

B)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (Cont’d)
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Cont’d)
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets except investment
properties, deferred tax assets, inventories and financial
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(v)

(w)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(x)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Critical Judgements and Key Estimates

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(i) Provision for completed properties held for
sale and properties for future development and
under development for sale
As explained in note 3(g), the Group’s completed
properties held for sale and properties for future
development and under development for sale
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Based on the Group’s recent experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the Group
makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs
of completion in case for properties for future
development and under development for sale, and
the costs to be incurred in selling the properties
based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a
decrease in net sales value, the net realisable value
will decrease and this may result in provision for
completed properties held for sale and properties for
future development and under development for sale.
Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, the carrying value and provision
for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates

(Cont’d)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Provision for completed properties held for
sale and properties for future development and
under development for sale (Cont’d)

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property
market and the unique nature of individual properties,
the actual outcomes in terms of costs and revenue
may be higher or lower than estimated at the
reporting date. Any increase or decrease in the
provision would affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment losses on prepaid project costs
The Group prepaid land and construction costs
for certain projects located on the lands which the
Group has not obtained title documents of the land
use rights. The Group is in the process of obtaining
title documents of these land use rights. Should
the title documents of these land use rights cannot
be obtained subsequently, certain prepaid costs
may not be recoverable. The Group provides for
impairment losses for the unrecoverable costs based
on its estimation. The Group’s estimates may be
inaccurate and any change in the estimates would
affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews the recoverability and ageing of
loans and receivables and provides for impairment
losses if the balances are not fully recoverable. The
assessments involve estimation on the recoverability
of these balances. The Group’s estimates may be
inaccurate and any change in estimates would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates 4. BERHEREEMET(E)

(Cont’d)
(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d) (@ fEETTHBEEZEERIRE)
(iv) Estimated income taxes (including LAT) and (iv) 1Zat AT (B 15+ B 1

deferred taxes MhIBE R ) e R A F TE
The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in NEBFEBHMNTEZFT
the PRC. Significant estimates are required in B AETHEBEHRE
determining the amount of the provision for tax IERE AN S R -
and the timing of payment of the related tax. There FEEEE KRG c REE
are many transactions and calculations for which EEBIEREEZ REEET
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during RETME XS RetE - i
the ordinary course of business. Where the final ZEEE RS SEE
tax outcome of these matters is different from the NEREZ BT © B
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences ERETEREET 2HE
will impact the income tax and deferred tax A2 iS5t BB LR T B o
provisions in the periods in which such determination
are made.
The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the ANEEFBES NP2 i1
PRC. However, the implementation and settlement BT - A AENIEZH
of these taxes varies among various tax jurisdictions REEERBEZE TR
in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not finalised BEEERER r MAEER
its land appreciation taxes calculation and payments i A B A B {a] 3 5 R 7S M
with any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, EE LT RIS HKEESE
significant judgment is required in determining the T ER 2 E RN RS
amount of the land appreciation and its related taxes. & o Hilt - BEE E A G
The Group recognised these land appreciation taxes AEEFE T 3%(E & E AR R
based on management’s best estimates according Br&% NEFBRESE
to the understanding of the tax rules. The final tax B 3% B 75 48 Bl 2 R AR 1E
outcome could be different from the amounts that H&EMSET RS
were initially recorded, and these differences will EF o AT IELERER] 8L
impact the cost of sales and deferred tax provision in B L ENSB TR
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised mMEBMEZEET EM H 5
with local tax authorities. HETEEERHIBZHER

RRIERIR R

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary HEBRBRAEBARKRHNER
differences and tax losses are recognised when S A Al Re 4 A EE S E R
management considers to be probable that future ZEBSHIAEE - BfERE
taxable profit will be available against which the ETEREEZERFHIEER
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. BEHENELEHREEE - HE
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be EFANGEREAgERRE -
different.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for revaluation BEEFRIEAEGST HYER
of investment properties and depreciation BEHEMBHEBTE 2T
allowances in excess of related depreciation in the ER R mMER - E Lt E
PRC and any change in estimates would affect profit ] B8 27 28 2k oK 8 By 3 Al 3k
or loss in future years. 18 -
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4.

Critical Judgements and Key Estimates
(Cont’d)

AARMETTIIR)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(v)

(vi)

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values calculated on the basis of well-
established valuation techniques using current
market parameters are theoretical values applicable
at a given reporting date, and hence can only be
used as an indicator of value realisable in a future
sale. These techniques involve uncertainties and
are significantly affected by the assumptions used
and judgements made regarding risk characteristics
of various financial instruments, discount rates,
estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss
and other factors. Changes in assumptions could
significantly affect these estimates and the resulting
fair values. Derived fair value estimates cannot
necessarily be substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and, in many cases, could not
be realised in an immediate sale of the instruments.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 17 to the financial statements,
investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by an independent firm of
professional surveyors after taking into consideration
the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have
based on a method of valuation which involves,
inter alia, certain estimates including current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation report,
the directors have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of
the current market conditions.

Financial guarantee contracts

Details of guarantees provided by the Group are set
out in note 37 to the financial statements. Based
on expectations at the reporting date, the directors
consider that it is more likely than not that such an
amount will not be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

4.
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5. Financial Instruments 5. €T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EWMIENDE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Financial assets SRMEE
Trading securities BEERH 2,130 2,296
Loans and receivables B & EUGR
(including bank and cash balances) (BREBITRRAESER) 66,217 172,887
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RESHR AT EN SR AE 2,394,314 2,288,491
Derivative financial liabilities PTEEMEE - 8
(b) Financial risk management (b) BiEMRERE
(i) Foreign currency risk () SMNER Bz

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

All the Group’s revenue-generating activities were
transacted in RMB. Exposure to foreign currency
risks is mainly attributable to bank deposits, bank
and other borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than RMB. Foreign currency risk is
measured by employing sensitivity analysis, taking
into account current and anticipated exposures.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that had the
Hong Kong Dollars exchange rate (versus RMB)
increased/decreased by 5% (2011: 5%), with all
other variables remaining constant, the Group’s
profit after tax for the year would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB22,151,000 (2011:
the Group’s loss after tax would have increased/
decreased by approximately RMB1,596,000).
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5.

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(b)

(i)

(i)

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk is mainly
attributable to the Warrants (note 28) issued by the
Company. The Warrants are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period and the Warrants’
fair value are changed in response to the change
in market price of the Company’s shares. As the
warrants has expired during the year 2012, no risk
exposed equity prices at 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that had the
market price of the Company’s shares increased/
decreased by 10%, with all other variables remaining
constant, the Group’s loss after tax for the year
would have increased/decreased by approximately
RMB3,456.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group has a defined credit policy. In addition,
the Group reviews the ageing of its individual debt
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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5.

76

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(b)

(ifi)

(v)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The credit risk on pledged deposits, bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings. The Group has
arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
properties and provided guarantees to certain former
subsidiaries, its tenant and business associates.
Details of these guarantees are set out in note 37 to
the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management based
on the Group’s internal guidelines on liquidity
requirement, including raising loans to cover the
expected cash demand, and obtaining credit lines,
subject to approval by the Board. The Group’s
objective is to strike a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking
facility and other borrowings. The Group financed its
operations and investment activities with internally
generated cash flows, balanced with proceeds from
the line of credit obtain from banks. There has been
no default on repayment of interest and/or bank
borrowings as at year end or at any time during the
year.
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5. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities (excluding receipts
in advance), which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to

AARMETTIIR)

5. ERMTAE)
(b) BEiEERREE(E)
(v) TEMEE (&)

TRETAEBEZIFNTES
RAEE(TERBEETOR
BEBZHRTANIHA -
TIRBEEHRFTERAECRE
(BREEREONERFEZF
BRI - SBFEF X -
AN EERBERAZHME
AHE) A RANEE A ERER

pay: ZRFEFE
2012
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ENRTRRLTE
Morethan  More than
Within ~ 1yearbut  2years but
1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than Carrying
on demand 2years 5years 5years Total amount
18R 1ENLEE  28NLR
FREX SioE Hi5E SENL an KEfE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTn  ARETR ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
Trade and other payables, and FEfTHRRT - EfupEft
acoruals B RERER 561,558 - - - 561,558 561,558
Rental and other deposits HEREMES 28,034 - - - 28,034 28,034
Bank and other borrowings FREMEE 1,803,822 - - - 1803822 1,803,822
Total T 2,394,314 - - - 2,394,314 2,394,314
2011
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SHATRR SR
More than More than
Within -~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than lessthan  More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
15h 1ENEE  2FENER
FRER PR0E PROF SEMUE a5 REME
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Trade and other payables, and EMERD - EffEf
accruals BHRERER 963,766 - - - 963,766 963,766
Rental and other deposits RERHES 11,768 = = = 11,768 11,768
Bank and other borrowings FIREMAE 903,268 464,750 - - 1368018 1,312,957
Total Ll 1,878,802 464,750 - - 2343552 2,288,491

The above table excluded all non-cash settled
contractual liabilities.

Zama’E-
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5.

78

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(v) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. It is the
Group’s intention to keep its borrowings at floating
interest rate with an aim to reflect market costs
of funding. It is this reason that cost of specific
borrowings financing the Group’s development
projects would be capitalised at a rate reflecting
market conditions. The Group’s effect on changes in
interest rate is considered immaterial to the Group’s
profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% (2011: 1%) in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax for
the year by approximately RMB8,923,000 (2011:
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax by
RMB9,847,000).

Fair values

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
their respective fair values. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy which has 3
levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Sun Century Group Limited AR5 42 S @H R A 5
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5. Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 5. ¢@IAE)
(c) Fair values (Cont’d) NAREE)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December R2012F 12 A1 BN AR EBERE
2012: R B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E 218 $3E et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®TR AR®TR AR%®TR
Assets EE
Trading securities BEFESH
— Listed —BEm 2,130 - - 2,130
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial liabilities PTETAEBE
— Warrants — AR TEE - - - -
During the year, decrease in derivative financial liabilities FR - AEIRAEEZARER
measured at fair value based on level 3 represented the fair ENTESREBERDIERER
value gain of approximately RMB8,000 recognised in the FREERA £ EW L A RE8,000
profit or loss. JC °
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December R2011F12 AT BN AR BERE
2011: e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E FEoRE E3[E et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AR®TT ARETT ARETT
Assets EE
Trading securities BEZRS
— Listed —BEmm 2,296 - - 2,296
Liabilities afE
Derivative financial liabilities TETREBG
- Warrants — R = = 8 8
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6. Turnover
The principal activities of the Group are property development
and property leasing in the PRC.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties, rental
income and management fee income recognised during the
year, net of business tax and other sales related taxes and
discounts allowed. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

AEENEEXEH/ETEEENER
BERMFEME -

LBEBANAFEARRBNHEDER
ARBEWRARERERKBA(ENR
LBENIEMBEERERARTR)
AEER BEREXBEEANSEIRZN
SmAOBONSEMT

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETIT
Sales of properties HEYHE 278,431 288,552
Rental income HS WA 40,678 24,370
Management fee income BEEEBWA 5,560 11,572
324,669 324,494

7. Other Net Income/(Expenses) Hil A (ZH)FEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE ¥ - KE M&E

2z 136 1,386
Interest income FEWA 52 3,142
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREMEZEE - (22,100
Net exchange gain/(loss) BE N e (518 ))F58 544 (11)
Net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) on BEES S50 EIRNARER
trading securities Wz (E518) /%58 241 (764)
Net utilities expenses related to property MEREXEBHEEA LS
leasing business A 5 (2,114) (1,064)
Reversal of impairment on other receivables % [o] H {th & W SR IE R (B 62,822 -
Reversal of overprovision of accruals BECITEIR & AR 68,673 9,847
Waiver of other payables N6 B T 3R - 3,600
Others Hib 4,419 2,163
134,773 (3,801)
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8.

Segment Information
The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

Property development — this segment develops and sells office
premises, residential and retail properties. Currently all the
Group’s property development activities are carried out in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Property leasing — this segment leases retail properties to
generate rental income and to gain from the appreciation in the
properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group’s entire
investment property portfolio is located in the PRC.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business segment requires different
marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those of the Group. Segment profits or losses do not include
finance costs, net change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments and corporate income and expenses. Segment
assets include all current and non-current assets with the
exception of trading securities, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all trade and other
payables, accruals, receipts in advance and rental and other
deposits.

7 RPER
AEEENTREREDH -

MEME - AN DR RIEESFIE -

FERTEDE - BREAEEZHEAD

ERBEBHRAEARLIFE ([
B )T °

YMEME - A AHETEYE AR
HEWAMEREHYEAEKE - B
RAEEZIREMERASHOUNDE -

ARG E 2 s 0w AR AR E a KR
B2 REEBEN - ARNBEBE DA
FERTRIMISREE - E D #T 0
B o

REDE 2 Gt BRERNEE RN E
—H e DHMEETEERERSE - 28
MTETRAZAREZHFERERKRA
kA% - DHMEERBREMABRE LR
PEE(REERS  BELEHMBEEER
HAEEEIN) - DMBEREFRA
JEHBE AN EAMEMNR - RIRER - B
WHRR - He REMES -
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8. Segment Information (Cont’d) 8. AIEHR(E)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, EHEERE IER  BERERE
assets and liabilities & &
Property Property
development leasing Total
L ESEE MERE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR® TR AR®TR
For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 20125128310 L FE
Revenue from external customers SR E A 278,431 46,238 324,669
Segment profit 53 E0 i ) 116,807 325,405 442,212
Other information: HibE#
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE &K
plant and equipment Z W= 136 - 136
Reversal of over provision of accruals BOITBIRE A 2 BB 68,673 - 68,673
Depreciation e 2,032 683 2,715
Impairment loss on trade and JRE ST BR R % A e
other receivables RIREEBE 2,160 - 2,160
Net increase in fair value of investment BEMERN R ER
properties R - 293,570 293,570
Impairment loss on inventories FEZREERE 48,000 - 48,000
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A Rl A s 17,719 - 17,719
Provision for impairment on prepaid TE T A AR B 1R
land cost 27,540 - 27,540
Additions to segment MEEDBRFERDEE
non-current assets 3,051 3,247 6,298
At 31 December 2012 RH2012%12A31H
Segment assets DEEE 1,685,721 1,090,997 2,776,718
Segment liabilities PEEE 544,809 49,080 593,889

82
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8.

Segment Information (Cont’d) 8. AMER(E)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, EEARE s SER  BEERERE
assets and liabilities (Cont’d) HER (&)
Property Property
development leasing Total
ek MERE EHI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREF T ARBTTT
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZ20115128318 L FE
Revenue from external customers INREPUA 288,552 35,942 324,494
Segment loss D EPEE 368,357 763,461 1,131,818
Other information: HibE#
Gain on disposal of property, HEWME - WERE
plant and equipment 2 Was 1,386 = 1,386
Loss on disposal of investment properties &3 & Y2~ Eig = 22,100 22,100
Reversal of over provision of accruals BOITBIRE A 2 BERHE 9,847 = 9,847
Depreciation e 1,935 730 2,665
Impairment loss on trade receivables JE Ut BR TR (B e 160,157 1,106 161,263
Net decrease in fair value of REMENDAED
investment properties AR ER - 752,000 752,000
Impairment loss on inventories FEZRERE 260,506 = 260,506
Gain on derecognition of available-for-sale 4% |FFERR] i &
financial assets LREENRE 33,306 - 33,306
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries kNG e 80,799 1,074 81,873
Impairment loss on subsidiaries group DEABEREZNE
classified as held for sale SBZRERE 8,861 = 8,861
Additions to segment MEEHHE
non-current assets FREEE 306 21 327
At 31 December 2011 M2011512831H
Segment assets DEEE 2,437,073 813,109 3,250,182
Segment liabilities HEBE 1,123,726 20,229 1,143,955
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8.

84

Segment Information (Cont’d)

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities

2EER (&)

ABmESBED BERABNYIR

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
Profit/(Loss) w=HL(ER)
Total profit/(loss) of reportable segments BRE D EE A (E1E)
FEE] 442,212 (1,131,818)
Other net income HAu U AF 5 1,570 2,082
Depreciation and amortisation P R 5 (54) (32)
Corporate finance costs 1SR E A AR (185,982) (156,023)
Net change in fair value of derivative financial PTESMTARAEES
instruments SHER 8 14,267
Other corporate expenses HMhHERAS (247,711) (21,862)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax BRI RIER G m F, (E518) 10,043 (1,293,386)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments BIE D EREE AR 2,776,718 3,250,182
Trading securities BEFH 2,130 2,296
Deferred tax assets BEEFRIBEE 3,505 8,924
Unallocated corporate assets REED B BEEE 593,178 140,166
Consolidated total assets REBEE 3,375,531 3,401,568
Liabilities =R
Total liabilities of reportable segments AMED T BERTE 593,889 1,143,955
Current tax liabilities BVEAFRIE B & 19,431 138,414
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 176,250 98,091
Unallocated corporate liabilities ReEHEMEEEE 1,815,241 1,363,998
Consolidated total liabilities MERAE 2,604,811 2,744,458

Geographical information

i E & R

All the revenue generated by the Group for the two years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 were attributable to customers
based in the PRC. In addition, majority of the Group’s non-
current assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
geographical analysis is presented.

Revenue from major customers

During the year, revenue derived from the Group’s largest
customer which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue amounted to approximately RMB118,260,000. This
revenue is attributable to the property development segment.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, revenue derived
from the Group’s largest customer which accounted for 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
RMB69,996,000.
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9. Finance Costs 9. WMEMA
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Interest on bank and other loans ARSFERNZ EMEZEMNRIT
wholly repayable within five years BERkHEMEEFE 273,695 178,423
Total borrowing costs EENA 4R 273,695 178,423
Less: Amount capitalised B B (87,713) (22,400)
185,982 156,023
The borrowing costs have been capitalised at interest rates BEKAE D AZERNEN F5.84%
ranging from 5.84% to 6.32% per annum (2011: 5.60% to £6.32% (2011 4F : F | £ 5.60% =
6.98% per annum). 6.98%) FIAE AL o
10. Income Tax Credit 10. FRERiIER

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income:

(@) HAEEZEWSERAMBIEA :

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Current tax B EA B 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMEH
— Under provision in respect of —FFETRREE
prior year - 16
PRC Corporate Income Tax RIS
— Provision for the year — F N 5,238 13,343
— Over provision in respect of prior years — — LA{T €5 [E iBEE R 5 (85,319) =
(80,081) 13,359
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) FR R £ 3 (E
([ ER])
— Provision for the year — F N 4,524 -
— Over provision in prior years — AT FEBEE A (37,298) -
(32,774) =
(112,855) 13,359
Deferred tax IEFER 18
Origination and reversal of temporary Ty =28 2 EE REE
differences 84,334 (188,618)
Effect of changes in tax rate on opening il R ) W HA IR A R IR
deferred tax balances HERREE (756) -
83,578 (188,618)
(29,277) (175,259)
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10.

86

Income Tax Credit (Cont’d)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income: (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI. Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a
rate of 16.5% (2011:16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong.

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax is based
on a statutory rate of 25% (2011: 25%) of the taxable
profits determined in accordance with the relevant income
tax rules and regulations in the PRC for the year ended 31
December 2012. Certain subsidiaries of the Group located
within the special economic zones in the PRC for which
the applicable preferential tax rate is 24% for 2011. The
preferential tax rate is increased to 25% for the year ended
31 December 2012. Accordingly, the deferred tax of the
Group is recognised based on tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled.

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for
sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditure including lease
charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditure.
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10. Income Tax Credit (Cont’d) 10. FRSHiIKE (&)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit/ (b)) RERBEXFENMSREGHA
(loss) at applicable tax rate: F/ (&8 BHE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
Profit/(Loss) before tax BREARF(EE) 10,043 (1,293,386)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before tax RN BT E25%
calculated at 25% (2011: 24%) (20114F : 24% )T EHIBR Y
in Shenzhen Arm A (BB MEEFIE 2,510 (310,413)
Effect of changes in tax rate on TR E B B ER IR
opening deferred tax balances REERR 2 (756) -
Tax effect on LAT deductible for AIFE P8R F0 8 A9 A R £ 3t
calculation of income tax purpose BERNTIBATE (1,131) =
Tax effect on reversal of LAT for STENAFEPE L HIZER
calculation in prior years BEMREYE 9,325 -
Tax effect of different tax rates ERARETHENEARNE
applied to certain PRC subsidiaries REMBHBETE - 3,260
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BAFHIRARNTIEZE (106,143) (6,824)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR B FIE 2 183,959 126,994
Tax effect of unused tax losses RFAERAREARIEBEDN
not recognised WMIER 2 2,520 6,301
LAT B+ b I (E TR 4,524 -
Reversal of LAT provided EFEERENS
in prior years T IE AT (37,298) -
(Over provision)/Under provision NEFEE (GBREEE),/
in prior years TREE (85,319) 16
Others HAh (1,468) 5,407
Income tax credit SRk e (29,277) (175,259)
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11. Profit/(Loss) and Total Comprehensive 1. REERAN(BE)REZE
Income/(Expense) for the year W (B )%
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTTT
Depreciation e 2,795 2,731
Less: Amount capitalised W BAR(bEEE (26) (34)
2,769 2,697
Auditor’s remuneration: ZEEM BN &
— Current year —KEE 1,136 1,216
— Under provision in prior year —EFEETREE - 130
— Other services — H A AR % 429 684
1,565 2,030
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: ETIRABIEESME -
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — T & - 885 FEEh 17,333 24,479
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — R IRE B 2,106 2,935
19,439 27,414
Less: Amount capitalised W BN R (2,109) (2,238)
17,330 25,176
Operating lease charges in respect of: LTEEMNLEHEEER
- Sub-leased properties —HfEYE - 5,846
- Office premises and staff quarters —MRERBIBESE 2,365 4,800
Cost of inventories sold FEHEEKAN 128,079 256,402
Impairment loss on trade and JFEE M6 R 50 B EL A JRE LUK
other receivables ZRIEEE 256,542 161,263
Impairment loss on prepaid land costs TES T A 2 B B 18 27,540 -
Direct outgoings (note) BEERZ () 1,104 14,455

88

Note:

Direct outgoings represent operating lease charges (in respect of sub-leased

properties which are disclosed separately above) and management fee expenses.

Sun Century Group Limited AR5t 42 =@ AR A 7

GEX

REBBERX

BEAXELXBYURBRNEENEELETHEER




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (& 3 4& Fi#g4sh - LAARETIIR)

12. Directors’ and Employee’s Emoluments 12. EEREEMS
The emoluments of each director are as follows: ZESFEMemT
Year ended 31 December 2012 BZE2012F12A31HIEFE
Retirement
benefit scheme
Salaries and  Discretionary  contributions
Fees allowances bonus BREA Total
Name of director EEnE He FeREM BERA FTEIER @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Executive directors HITEZE

CHAU Cheok Wa [l 98 - - 4 102
ZENG Yunshu (Note (g)) BEE(HE(R) - - - 2 2
CHENG Mei Ching LIES 98 - - 4 102
LEE Chi Shing Caesar (Note (b)) FER (M (D) 65 - - 2 67
LEUNG Ming Ho (Note (b)) 24 (M3 (b)) 57 - - 2 59
QIU Bin (Note (c)) B33 (i (c)) 57 919 - 13 989
YEUNG So Lai CES 98 836 - 9 943
YEUNG So Mui CEL 106 - - 4 110
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEE

CHEUNG Kwok Yu (Note (a)) FH (M) 41 - - - M
CHEUNG Ngai Lam (Note (a)) RAA (M) 51 - - - 51
LI Jun (Note (a)) T (K@) 51 - - - 51
LO Wai Tung John (Note (d)) EHR (W) 2 - - - 22
LUI'Man Wah (Note (b)) a3 E (fiE(b) 33 - - - 33
TOU Kin Chuen (Note (e)) 1% (fste) 66 - - - 66
WU Kam Fun (note (g)) R (fizEe) 66 - - - 66
Total @t 909 1,755 - 40 2,704
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12. Directors’ and Employee’s Emoluments

920

12. EEREEME (F)

(Cont’d)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HZEC01MFE12A31B ILFE
Retirement
benefit scheme
Salaries and Discretionary ~ contributions
Fees allowances bonus RIREA Total
Name of director B4 e g R BE A HE e it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Executive directors HiTEZE
CHAU Cheok Wa (Note (f) B (M) 33 - - - 33
ZENG Yunshu LEE - 867 - 10 877
ZENG Sheng (Note (g)) B (i) - 52 - 1 53
JIN Leo (Note (n)) JINLeo(FiiE(h) 33 131 - - 164
YE Qingdong (Note (i) ZER (M) - 413 - 7 420
QUYANG Junxin (Note () BRI (M () - 227 - 5 232
LEE Chi Shing Caesar ZER 91 - - - 91
CHAN Ting Lai (Note (k)) e (M) 59 - - - 59
YEUNG So Mui VEY 91 - - - 91
HUANG Ling (Note () 5 (M0) - 275 - - 275
CHAU Sui Heng (Note (m)) [Em B (B =E(m)) 33 - - - 33
CHAN Wai Leng (Note (m)) B (fizEm) 33 - - - 33
CHENG Mei Ching (Note (f) B2 (JHE) 33 - - = 33
YEUNG So Lai (Note (f)) BRE (M) 33 - - - 33
LEUNG Ming Ho (Note (f) 2 (F3E() 33 - - - 33
Non-executive directors FHTEZ
ZHANG Yijun (Note (n)) KREH(MEN) 83 152 - 8 243
ZHANG Yiyan (Note (0)) RER (M7 (o)) 33 757 - 9 799
Independent non-executive directors BUIRITEE
Ll Jun 2% 114 - - = 114
CHEUNG Ngai Lam R 114 - - - 114
WANG Fosong (Note (p)) THRR(ME(p) 73 - - - 73
LI Wai Keung (Note (q)) T8 (MEQ) 53 - - - 53
CHEUNG Kwok Yu (Note (r) oREIA (B EE()) 41 - - - 41
Total &t 983 2,874 = 40 3,807
Note: BiaE -
(@) retired on 1 June 2012 (@) R2012F6 A1 ARE
(b) resigned on 31 July 2012 (b) R201247 A31 HBHE
() appointed on 19 June 2012 () R2012F6 H19B EZF
(d) appointed on 10 October 2012 (d) R2012F10A10R B EE
(e) appointed on 26 April 2012 (e) R2012F4 A26 B EERE
() appointed on 2 September 2011 () R2011F9A2BEZF
(@  resigned on 14 January 2011 (@  H2011F1 8148 BT
(h) appointed on 29 July 2011 and resigned on 5 December 2011 (h) R201167 A29 B EZEWR2011F1285
A &HE
0] resigned on 30 November 2011 (i) 72011411 A30H BHE
0] resigned on 31 July 2011 (0} R20114%E7 A31 HBHE
(k) resigned on 2 September 2011 (k) R2011F9 A2 A BT
0} appointed on 5 January 2011 and resigned on 5 December 2011 [0) R2011F1 A5 EZEKRR2011F1285
HEHE
(m)  appointed on 2 September 2011 and resigned on 31 December 2011 (m) H2011F9A2AEZERK2011F12A31

(n) re-designated on 31 January 2011 and resigned on 3 November 2011

Sun Century Group Limited AR5t 42 =@ AR A 7
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12. Directors’ and Employee’s Emoluments 12. EEREEMS (E)
(Cont’d)
Note: (Cont’d) fisE - (&)

(0) re-designated on 30 June 2011 and resigned on 24 November 2011

(p) resigned on 5 September 2011
(a) retired on 27 May 2011
(r appointed on 5 September 2011

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

The five highest individuals in the Group during the year included
2 (2011: 3) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining

(0) 1201146 A30 A #AEKXHR2011F11 24

HEHE
() 201149 A5HBHE
(@  R2011F5H27HERE
G R2011F9ASAERT

Y ELZHEERNAFERELRENE
T -

AEBRAFERERSHE A LBIE
2ZEE (20114 : 38) - HE&H N L
XM o HEASBE E2012F12 A31H

3 individuals for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out IEFENMSREIT -
below:

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBFIT
Salaries and allowances e MEA 1,533 1,114
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRERIFF 2R 22 20
1,555 1,134

The emoluments of the 3 individuals with the highest emolument
is within the following band:

Hep3E e xmm A 6B & & E 4
T

Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EE#E EE2A
2012 2011
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to approximately RMB818,000) (FBERH AR®S818,000
JT) 3 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

KEER  AEEBERTAESIER
BFEMOALINME - EARIIERSE
AOAZ 5= B 370 A0 A AN 5 [ By ) 22 B 3
RERA1E -
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13. Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Owners of the 13. RAATHE AEGER,(&E)
Company
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the RARHEE ANEEEE R, (B1B)8
Company includes a loss of approximately RMB223,423,000 FEH AR ¥223,423,000 T A fE518 (2011
(2011: RMB22,847,000) which has been dealt with in the & AR#22847,0007T) * ZEIED
financial statements of the Company. RAR BTSRRI ©
14. Dividends 14. RE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend EEVEEZRMNEZ2012F12 A 31
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil). HIEFERBARKRE (20114 : £) o
15. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share 15. ERER,(E5E)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share RKANRBEEANEBEEBRERNR#ER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the () 2 st EEENT -
following data:
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ANEBTT
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable RNA R NFEARES
to owners of the Company BR(E8) RtEFKR
and earnings/(loss) for the purpose of HEAREBERF, (EE)
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share 2 &R/ (EE) 39,320 (1,118,121)
Number of shares
R ER
2012 2011
(restated)
(g =51)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for &M EAR K #E
the purpose of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) BRI/ (F8) 2 E Rk
per share hnHE i g 642,767,406 385,200,143

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share for both periods have been retrospectively adjusted for
the effect of bonus element in connection to the open offer
completed in January 2013.

The Company’s outstanding share options and warrants had
no dilutive effect on earnings/(loss) per share upon deemed
exercise during the two years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011 as the exercise price of the share options and warrants
were higher than the average market price of the Company’s
shares.

92 Sun Century Group Limited K3 tt42 EEEHER QT
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16. Property, Plant And Equipment

16. Y% - BMERRE

Buildings Furniture
held for Leasehold and Motor
own use improvements fixtures vehicles Total
BEEAET HEEE REREE RE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost B
At 1 January 2011 1201141 A1H 3,470 4,099 5,920 7,346 20,835
Additions AE = 2,532 374 - 2,906
Disposal e (3,470) (3,882) (127) (1,296) (8,775)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A = = (589) (552) (1,141)
Transfer to subsidiaries group BB ZE N1 A#E{E
classified held for sale HEZHBE - - (321) (609) (930)
At 31 December 2011 M2011612A31H
and 1 January 2012 &201241 418 - 2,749 5,257 4,889 12,895
Re-classification ENNE - (704) 704 - -
Additions NE = = 1,009 5,896 6,905
Disposal HE = - (444) (351) (795)
Written off MisH = (1,895) - - (1,895)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (1) - 21)
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A31H - 150 6,505 10,434 17,089
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZitiFE
At 1 January 2011 M201141 /1M 1,480 2,306 2,484 4,694 10,964
Charge for the year KEEHE 67 712 995 957 2,731
Disposal e (1,547) (487) (68) (1,263) (3,365)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - (425) (522) (947)
Transfer to subsidiaries group BB EHHE AR {E
classified held for sale HEZHBEE = - (166) (158) (324)
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12A317
and 1 January 2012 R201261A81H - 2,531 2,820 3,708 9,059
Re-classification BNNE - (577) 577 = =
Charge for the year REEHE - 7 1,407 1,381 2,795
Disposal HE = = (386) (156) (542)
Written back & = (1,895) - - (1,895)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERHBAR - - 4 - (4)
At 31 December 2012 R2012512A31H - 66 4,414 4,933 9,413
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A31H - 84 2,091 5,501 7,676
At 31 December 2011 R2011%E12/318 - 218 2,437 1,181 3,836
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17. Investment Properties 17. REWHE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARBTT
At 1 January R1A1H 780,000 1,614,100
Additions IN= 6,430 -
Disposals e - (82,100)
Net increase/(decrease) in fair value NREEMN G ) FEE 293,570 (752,000)
At 31 December ®12H31H 1,080,000 780,000

(@)

All of the Group’s investment properties held under
operating lease for rental purposes are measured using
the fair value model. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 by an independent firm of surveyors, Ascent
Partners Transaction Services Limited, who has among
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued, on a market value basis
calculated by reference to the net rental income allowing
for reversionary income potential.

On 27 March 2012, the Group entered a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of Hong Long Plaza at
RMB780 million and the agreement was lapsed at 30
September 2012. A decrease in fair value of RMB715
million loss has then been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

The Group’s investment properties at their carrying
amounts are analysed as follows:

NEBLLERNFEHER R
FTEREWEOUARARBENX
£ o ARBEREYHEA20125F12
A31B K20114E12A31BEE A
EHWEEMENNE REEFR
HRBnRSIEME2edFes
AEEBNBILAEMITNABER
SREERARBREBEAFATSER
2ERS WA FEEIL =1 K Al e 18
SURAEL -

MR20126E3A27H » AEEEREE
Etraz - UAR®780,000,0007T
S BIE B S Mz R 201249
AB0REUH - AR¥715,000,000
TCZ A ERE A T R 2011 45
12331 A IEFEANER -

REEREMFEREREES TN
™

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T

In Shenzhen, PRC A BRI
- Long lease —REHEE 1,080,000 780,000
— Medium-term lease —HHEAE - -
1,080,000 780,000
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17. Investment Properties (Cont’d)

18.

elements as at 31 December 2012.

17. REWE(E)
(d) The Group leases out certain investment properties (d)
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to twenty years, with an option to
renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases has significant contingent

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments
under noncancellable operating leases from investment

properties are receivable as follows:

AEEREBECEHENHETIRE
Y - BEZEHOV L B —
E20FMNZBEAREEN -
[ELSEIREE SRS EER TE A
201212 A31H @ ZEHEH T
SERHIAREE -

AEERBETAFRALCEHER
KEMFEBRRERNRERER
THAARRMN T -

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Within one year 15K 38,726 34,711
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2FE EH55F
(EEMFBIEEAN) 125,960 122,782
After five years 5 1% 174,778 215,586
339,464 373,079
(e) At 31 December 2012, all investment properties of the (e) 20124128310 * AEEMAE

Group were pledged against certain bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group and details of which are
set out in note 29(d) to the financial statements.

BREMEEFERTAKES TIRT
REMEFRERZE - BREFBH
B TS ¥R &R M 5E29(d) °

Inventories 18. 7 &
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTTT

Properties for future development and HEERRRAER

under development for sale EERBAME 1,462,201 1,000,194
Completed properties held for sale BFEHEND B TYE 123,455 273,281
1,585,656 1,273,475
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18. Inventories (Cont’d)

(a)

The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in

AARMETTHIR)

(@)

18. FE (&)

BRERBENRKAZERERST

properties for future development and under development MERBELEND R ITYWERND
for sale and completed properties held for sale is as HETHERmEI T -
follows:
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
In PRC =8|
— Long leases —=HHEE 161,009 217,468
- Medium-term leases —FHEE - -
161,009 217,468

Included above are amounts totalled approximately
RMB15,288,000 (2011: RMB15,288,000) representing
lease payment for land use rights of certain pieces of land
in the PRC. The Group is in the process of applying for the
land use right certificates subject to the approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

Based on the legal opinion obtained, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group is the beneficial
owner of the land use rights and is entitled to lawfully and
validly use these land use rights.

The amount of properties for future development and
under development for sale expected to be recovered after
more than one year is analysed as follows:

LB BRBEAEHDARK
15,288,000 7C (2011 4 : A R #&
15,288,0007T) * Bl BB EE T
8 = Ho /9 -t 5P AR RE R AR & 5RIE o
NEE TR ERES WA
AR 8 R B IS Y ©

REFMEGHZERR - ARAE
ERRAEERIHERENESR
BN LERSEZAVRERZS
T fERE o

TEHRR B FLAE 5 Al B M
ERRABERERTMENSTED
Mran

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Properties for future development and L A R 2R A B

under development for sale NEER R 188,959 345,871
Apart from the above, all inventories are expected to be Br_Eatsh - FREEMFETRER

recovered within one year. 1 B o
At 31 December 2012, certain inventories were pledged () M2012F12H31H ' EFTFEE®

against bank loans granted to the Group and details of

which are set out in note 29(d) to the financial statements.
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19. Trade and Other Receivables

AARMETTIIR)

19. FEURBRR I H At FE KUK

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTTT

Trade receivables (note(a)) FEUR R SR (BT 5E(a)) 8,321 11,750
Other receivables (note(b)) H th & Wk (BT EE (b)) 11,611 2,127
Loans and advances (note(c)) BRI (HIEE(C)) 31,062 33,280
Prepaid land costs (note(d)) TEAT A AN (B RE(d)) 38,000 74,494
Prepayments and deposits AN RES 592,347 638,548
681,341 760,199

(@) Trade receivables are mainly arisen from leasing and sales
of properties. Rental receivables from tenants are due on
presentation of invoices and no credit terms for sales of
properties unless otherwise specified in the underlying

agreements with the purchasers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice

(@ EURERTIZXREVEEENH
€ - RUEHFPFESREAZERRE
B MEHEXEEEHR 8T
R B ESBRERIERID -

YRR EHENREAYR

date for property leasing and delivery date for property VI SHE RS AR ERER D0
sales, is as follows: ™

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBFIT

0 to 3 months 0=3fEA 6,530 11,670
More than 3 months but less HBiE3ME A

than 6 months B 61E A - -
More than 6 months but less HBiE61E A

than 1 year BALMR14E - -

Over 1 year BB 1,791 80

8,321 11,750
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Cont’d)

(@)

(Cont’d)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables which were past
due but not impaired is as follows:

AARMETTHIR)

19. FEURRRR R E B Wk (4])

(a)

(%)
B8 HAE i AR E HO FE MR AR R R e
DL

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREEF T

0 to 3 months 0Z31f A 6,530 11,670
More than 3 months but less HBiB31E A

than 6 months BAR61E A - -
More than 6 months but less BE6{E A

than 1 year BAORIE - -

Over 1 year BiE1F 1,791 80

8,321 11,750

The above receivables relate to a number of independent
purchasers and tenants. In respect of the trade receivables
arose from sales of properties, the directors of the
Company consider that these receivables would be
recovered and no allowance was made against these
past due receivables. Regarding the rental receivables,
rental deposits were held as collateral over the balances.
As such, the directors consider that no allowance for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances.

Included in other receivables is an amount due from
a major construction contractor of approximately
RMBS3,500,000 (201 1: nil).

Included in loans and advances are amounts of
approximately:

(i) RMB30,000,000 (2011: nil) made to a business
associate that is secured, interest-bearing at 3%
monthly basis. Since there was a charge held as
collateral over the balance, the directors consider
that no allowance for impairment is necessary in
respect of the balance.
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Cont’d)

(©

(d)

(Cont’d)

(i) In 2011, RMB40,000,000 made to a business
associate that is secured, interest-bearing at 110% of
1-3 year RMB benchmark lending rate as determined
from time to time by the People’s Bank of China
per annum and interest receivable of approximately
RMB7,164,000. The sum is secured by 27 shops in
Shenzhen Baorun Decorative Material Mall. In view
of the uncertainty of the recovery of the outstanding
amount, the directors consider that it is appropriate,
to make an allowance for impairment of approximately
RMB20,000,000 on the amount outstanding in excess
the value of the pledged assets. In 2012, there is a
reversal of impairment of RMB20,000,000 and the
sum was fully repaid.

The Group’s prepaid land costs comprise the following:

()  Included in prepaid land costs are amounts
totalled of approximately RMB38,000,000 (201 1:
RMB74,494,000) relating to partial payment of
land costs for acquisition of land use rights in the
PRC upon successfully bidding at land auctions
conducted by the PRC government and the related
preparatory costs. In view of the uncertainty of
the project costs, the directors consider that it is
appropriate to make an impairment loss on prepaid
land costs amounting to RMB27,540,000 during the
year.

20. Consideration Receivables

(a)

Included in the consideration receivables in 2011 is an
amount of RMB65,000,000 arising from the disposal of the
Group’s subsidiary, Huizhou Yintaida Company Limited*
in 2010. This consideration receivable was fully settled in
March 2012.

For identification purposes only

19. FEURRRR R H ft B WOk (&)

(©

(d)

(%)

(i) RO FEBHEALTHE
KB FRA K ¥ 40,000,000
T BEER - BREAR
BT BFETHEEN—Z2=
FHHARBEREERNEN
110%5T 5 - RIRAI B A A
R#7,164,0007C ° %458
FORYIE B &M BHB 27 R
JESHHIR o R U E KK
B THEEL BEERA
L EEREZ BT
%3 A R # 20,000,000 7T 5 1
BEER - R2012F - AR
#20,000,000 7T Jik {5 & # [E]
BZBEDBEEE -

AEBBNLHAABIENT ¢

() FIATEMNIHEARNES LY
A R # 38,000,000 7T (2011
& AR #¥74,494,0007C )
Th3% B A P ID A% AR B AT
T AE %S E £ i A4
M 2 A #9385 £ #h A AR A
MEEEREBA - ERIEE
KAFBETHBAREZR - &
ERERFABHEARE
27,540,000 7T K T8 {5 1=t AR
EREREIEEBRE -

20. BWAKE

(a)

RO FRKRETEREARE
65,000,0007T * #Z R IEJH 2K B A&
EEE2010F B EH B A A =M
MIRREBEGRADR] o ZERAK
BER2012F3 ABELES -

(el
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20.

21.

22.

100

Consideration Receivables (Cont’d)

(o) Also included in the consideration receivables in 2011 is
an amount of approximately RMB10,603,000, being the
balance of consideration receivable of RMB284,000,000
arising on the disposal of the Group’s equity interests in
Shenzhen Huaxingguang Industrial Company Limited” was
settled through offsetting against the Group’s expenditure
during the year.

20. FEWAE (&)

(b)

K201 FEURAREIRBELA
R #10,603,0007T BN & AN
ERAYMEREEXBR QA
CREFMEECERREARKE
284,000,0007T 2 #4288 2 5 18 1 85
AEERFRNZHASZMEE °

Trading Securities 21. EEES
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Listed securities, outside ERFEINEMHEHFRARE)
Hong Kong, at fair value 2,130 2,296
2,130 2,296

The fair values of listed securities are based on quoted market
bid prices.

Pledged Deposits
(@) Included in pledged deposits are:

(i) Deposits of approximately RMB287,000 (2011:
RMB214,000) pledged with certain banks as
guarantee deposits for mortgage loan facilities
granted by the banks to purchasers of the Group’s
properties.

(i) Deposits of approximately RMB868,000 (2011:
RMB864,000) pledged with banks securing the
Group’s bank loans as set out in note 29(d).

(o) The pledged deposits are denominated in RMB.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

(c) At 31 December 2012, the pledged deposits are subjected

to floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.5% (2011: 0%
to 0.5%) per annum.

Sun Century Group Limited AR5t 42 =@ AR A 7

=)

BHNARBERTSEEAEBRR

B e o
22, EAER

(a)

AEBEMREFRERE

i) ¥ & & AR 287,000 T
(20114 : AR % 214,000
TL) c RER ST AE TR
RTAEBEYEE HHIRE
EXmEEARBZRESTA

SERT o

(i) B—EFHNHFE29(d)HIRTT
BERmERFERTOEAR
#868,0007T (20114 : AR
#864,0007T ) FUTF X ©

EHERAARETE - ARER
R HNES 7858 57 h B SINEE B R M5 1) K%
REE - EERMNEEERE °

M2012F12 A31H - B ERIZ
FRENTF0%ZE0.5% (20114 :
0%Z20.5%)FENFIRE B -
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23.

24.

Bank and Cash Balances
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and cash balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

AARMETTIIR)

23.

BITRASLEEH
AR ERIT R S 444 K0 IR (5 T3
EHHE -

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARETTT

RMB AR 13,269 3,343
United States Dollars =TT 74 267
Hong Kong Dollars BT 725 45,439
14,068 49,049

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

At 31 December 2012, bank balances of approximately
RMB13,712,000 (2011: RMB48,515,000) are subjected to
floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.5% (2011: 0% to
0.50%) per annum.

Subsidiaries Group Classified As Held For Sale
In August 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its 100% equity
interest in Luxegood Developments Limited (“Luxegood”)
for a consideration of HK$323,170,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB269,308,000). In December 2011, the
Group entered into a supplemental agreement to adjust the
consideration to HK$294,840,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB245,700,000). The transaction was subsequently
completed on 24 February 2012. In 2011, the assets and
liabilities attributable to Luxegood had been classified as a
disposal group held for sale and were presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position (see below).
In 2011, Luxegood was included in the Group’s property
development business for segment reporting purposes. The net
carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities exceeded
the net proceeds of disposal and accordingly, an impairment
loss of RMB8,861,000 had been recognised in 2011.

24.

ARBHBIINERBTHEINEE R K
IR AEE ~ EERNEERRE -

R2012%F 12 A31H @ RITH&H O A
R #13,712,0007C (20116 : AR
48,515,0007T) IZF FIE N F0%E£0.5%
(20114 : 0% Z£0.50% ) H))F B | &R 5t
B o

PEABELEZHEBEER
R2011E8A  AEBEFILEE H& -
HEEEERERERAE ([ZEE])100%
AE#E - R {8 /A5323,170,000/8 7T (FHER
4 N R #269,308,0007T ) ° 20114
128 AEERI L frimE - BREH
/294,840,000 7T (HHERHARE
245,700,0007T) ° X 5 E £ R 20124F2
RA24B FERK » A20114E » EIEEERNE
ENBEEHESEARERE MBS
C W E B R E T B RRE 23R
(RTX) > R20114F » EEERBED
HENMAREENMEBRREER - K
20114F - B ERBEMREFEA
REEMSHIEFERE  THLEERAR
#8,861,000 L KR EE 18 °
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24. Subsidiaries Group Classified as Held for Sale 24. 28 A EFHECHBEBE (&)

(Cont’d)
(@) Assets of subsidiaries group classified as held (a) PEABEHEZKHEBEE
for sale BE
2011
RMB’000
ARBETIT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE &K 606
Deferred tax assets EETIB & EE 177
Inventories FE 399,631
Trade and other receivables JFEE L5 AR 5 % EL A R AR 40,220
Taxation recoverable FEUR TR I8 6,188
Pledged deposits ERER 1,575
Bank and cash balances RITRIE SRR 7,572
455,969
Impairment loss recognised EERBEBRE (8,861)
447,108
(b) Liabilities of subsidiaries group classified as held (b) PHEABELECZHESEEH
for sale =L
2011
RMB’000
ARETIT
Trade and other payables JEAS BR R K EL A FE A5 R 6,571
Receipt in advance TEUER R 145,987
Bank and other borrowings |ITRHEMEER 48,850
201,408
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AARMETTIIR)

25. Trade and Other Payables, and Accruals

26.

27.

25. BN - HBEARR AR

gH

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTIT

Trade payables 48,580 109,644

Amounts due to directors e ZEERE - 440

Other creditors and accrued charges — E i fER R IBEIZE R 512,978 853,682

561,558 963,766

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: FEBRFRERER DATLO T -

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

0 - 3 months or on demand 0Z 31 A stz Bk 48,580 109,644
More than 8 months but less

than 6 months BAR61E A - -
More than 6 months but less

than 1 year BLR1E - -

Over 1 year - -

48,580 109,644

Receipts in Advance

Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds received
from purchasers in connection with the Group’s pre-sales
of properties and prepaid rental from tenants of the Group’s
investment properties. All receipts in advance are expected to

be settled within one year.

Rental and Other Deposits

Included in rental and other deposits were approximately
RMB28,934,000 (2011: RMB11,768,000) which are expected
to be settled after more than one year. All other rental and other

deposits are expected to be settled within one year.

26. FAWERR

BURERREASBEBRENEBERES
WEESHEMSR R B AREERED X
MEPWEMTENES - A FAWARRX

REM FREE o

27. HEREMZS

HErEMZSFRIE—SEBEHMF
BEE AK ARE28,934,0007T B 5118
(20114 : AR¥11,768,0007T) ° Fi
HEmHAEREMIZS BRI FERE
B o
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28. Derivative Financial Liabilities

28.

TTESHMEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

=117
ko

Warrants R

- 8

The Warrants, representing the fair value of the right to
subscribe for the Company’s ordinary share at the applicable
exercise price, was lapsed in the year 2012. In 2011, the
warrants was determined by an independent valuer, Asset
Appraisal Limited, using the Binomial option pricing model.

Each warrant may be exercised from the date of issue up to
2 October 2012 at an initial exercise price, subject to certain
conditions of resent and adjustment, of HK$3.36 per ordinary
share of the Company. On 20 September 2008, the exercise
price of the Warrants has been reset to HK$1.68, being 50% of
the initial exercise price of HK$3.36.

As a result of the share consolidation on 1 June 2012, an
adjustment has made to the exercise price and the number
of the outstanding Warrants from HK$1.68 to HK$16.80 and
81,000,000 Warrants to 8,100,000 Warrants.

Fair value of the Warrants and key assumptions were as follows:

RBREE(HERAIRERTEERE
AAREBARMNENNARE)ER
2012F 53k » 20114 - RRHEZH
B HEMEENFEBEMERARFEA
ZIEA B EERAE o

BORBERAIRNETAYEE2012F
10A28 » BINBITEEERARR L
BAX3.36BTTITRE - HBEXETEER
SAEARMFTRR - 200859 H20H -
RBEEEZTEECERR1.688T
RFIATTRE(ES.36/87T.250% °

RAN20126E6 B1BETRMDAH K
TERREZHITEERESEEH1.68
7 7T 38 8 %= 16.807 7T & F1 81,000,000
19 SR B HE 35 3 2 £ 8,100,000 17 72 A% #E

.
%
ag °

REEENAABEREZRERDOT

2012 2011
Fair value at measurement date ST HENAR - HK$0.0001
Share prices R (B - HK$0.177
Exercise price 1TEE - HK$1.68
Expected volatility TEHR R i@ - 85%
Expected dividends TEERRR B - 0%
Risk-free interest rate 4 [ [ | =R - 0.24%
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29. Bank and Other Borrowings 20. RITREMEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Bank loans IRITER
— Secured — B 890,600 1,112,600
— Unsecured — - -
890,600 1,112,600
Other loans HEMER
— Secured — B 32,661 110,000
— Unsecured — 4L 880,561 90,357
913,222 200,357
1,803,822 1,312,957
(a) The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: (@ EEENRTREMEERT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Bank and other loans RITREMEK
on demand or within one year RESRE 1 ERNES 1,803,822 865,957
In the second year F2F - 447,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEIESF (FF55F) -
After the five years 5%1& - =
- 447,000
1,803,822 1,312,957
Less: Amount due for B FEUR121E A R4S B R I EF
settlement within 12 months FE FAERBEE)
(shown under current liabilities) (1,803,822) (865,957)
Amount due for settlement JE U1 21 A 14 4 & /9 B B 5 IE
after 12 months - 447,000
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29. Bank and Other Borrowings (Cont’d) 29. RITRHEMEE(E)
(b)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other (o) AEEFETREMEENERETED
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: ARG EEEHE -
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
Hong Kong Dollars BT 443,741 77,357
RMB AEEE 1,360,081 1,235,600
United States Dollars EViH - -
1,803,822 1,312,957
(c) The following table details the interest rate profile of the () TRFAMKAEBRRITRAMEER
Group’s bank and other borrowings at the reporting date: & B HRRF AR -
2012 2011
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
L PES ERFIE
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR¥TR AREF T
Fixed rate borrowings: BEFMEEER :
Bank and other loans RITREMEK 2.00-36.00 908,222  2.00-30.00 627,957

Variable rate borrowings: SERNRES

Bank and other loans RITREMER 5.84-6.35 895,600 6.32-8.00 672,000
Interest-free borrowings: REBE N/A - N/A 13,000
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29. Bank and Other Borrowings (Cont’d) 29.

(d) At 31 December 2012, the Group’s asset pledged as
security for the Group’s bank and other borrowing are as

(d)

RITRHEMESR (F)

M2012F12A31H * AAREER
ThEMEEMERN RSB EE

follows: AR
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTIT
Investment properties WEME 1,080,000 780,000
Inventories FE 1,273,242 654,323
Prepaid land cost TEAS AR - 74,494
Pledged deposits EiNER 1,155 864
2,354,397 1,509,681

At 31 December 2012, included in bank and other
borrowings are certain loans amounted to approximately
RMB440,600,000 (2011: RMB795,600,000) guaranteed
by ex-director of the Company, Mr. ZENG Yunshu and/or
Mr. ZENG Sheng.

At 31 December 2012, included in bank and other
borrowings are certain loans amounted to approximately
RMBNil (2011: RMB120,000,000) secured by certain
certificates of land use rights of lands owned by a
disposed subsidiary of the Group.

R2012F12 A31H » BT hHAM
BEEEERARRNEESEER
EER/REBBLEERNETE
A AN R #440,600,0007T (2011
£ AR¥795,600,0007T) °

R2012F12 A31H » IRIT hHAM
BERENAEBEE LEHB AR
HENSA T L ERREERENS
FEFRHAREZIL(20114F © A
R #120,000,0007T) °
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30. Deferred Tax 30. iEL@EIE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised RERE B AR R R AR IR I8
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the (BE)/ aEss RFERNEBHIT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Temporary Temporary

Depreciation differences differences

allowances  arising from arising
in excess of deferred Total from LAT Capitalisation Total
Revaluation related rent deferred FE  ofinterest deferred
of investment ~ depreciation FE taxliabilities MELH  expenses  taxassets

poperties BLEBMARN  BEREN  BERR  BERN  EHE  EERE
EtRENR  fERRE  ERER ARAE  EWER  ABxh  REAE
RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'0OO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB00O
ARBTT  ARBTT  ARMTT  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARWIx

At1 January 2011 RO1E1A1R 211617 12,583 4,576 288,726 (3612) (9,621) (13233
Charge/(Credit) to profit and loss e/ GrA s (188,175) 2116 (576 (190,635) (2,888) 4905 2017
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBR - - - - 2,067 48 2115
Transfer to subsiolaries group classified EPERENEEEY

as held for sale HELRER - - - - - 177 17
At 31 December 2011 R2011£12A31R 83,442 14,649 - 98,091 (4,433) (4,491) (8,924)
Effect of changes in tax rate RESTE BN

on opening deferred tax balances to BIELHE 72

profit and loss - - - - - (756) (756)
Charge/(Credlt) to profit and loss e/ GIA B 73,303 4,766 - 78,159 3,302 2873 6,175
At 31 December 2012 R2012E12R318 156,835 19,415 - 176,250 (1,131) (2,374) (3,505)
At 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of MR2012F12 A31H » KEEFAXEH
approximately RMB2,998,000 (2011: RMB59,107,000) available FRIE B 18 49 A R 2,008,000 7T (2011
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has F: AR%59,107,0007T) 7] # K48 &
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit g Fl| o AR PR g A S AT TR - whr A
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of BRELEHBEEE - st ARERBIARS
RMB2,998,000 (2011: RMB59,107,000) will expire after five B EE AR2,998,0007T (20114 :
years from the year of assessment they relate to. AR #59,107,0007T) # B FT 4 MR Bt

FRESFREM °
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31. Share Capital 1. R
Number of shares Share capital
REAHE TN
2011 2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FET THAT
Authorised: ATE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ~ SREE0.10/E T (72011
(31 December 2011: HK$0.01 each) #1278318 : SREE
0.01#7) M@K 3,000,000,000 30,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
At 1 January 2012 and 201261 A1E &
at 1 January 2011 2011 E1A1H 1,230,671,384  1,230,671,384 12,307 12,307
(@ 615,335,602 - 6,153 -
(b) 244,299,674 - 2,443 _
(© (1,881,276,075) - - -
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A318 K
and 31 December 2011 2011124318 209,030,675 1,230,671,384 20,903 12,307
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
RMB equivalent ARBER 18,949 11,971
Notes: Mt -
(a) On 3 January 2012, the Company raised approximately HK$6,153,000 by (a) R2012%F1A38 * RARIKERAREEZ

way of issuing 615,335,692 shares of HK$0.01 each at the subscription
price of HK$0.10 per share basis on one offer share for every two shares
held on 8 December 2011, the record date of the open offer.

In January 2012, the Company issued convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$30 million to an independent third party. On 20 February
2012, 244,299,674 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued by the Company
on the conversion price of HK$0.1228 per share as the note holder
exercised the conversion rights attached to the convertible notes.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at a extraordinary general meeting on 1 June 2012, every 10
issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in share capital of the
Company be consolidated into one share of HK$0.10 each.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

ek B HI2011 612 A8 B B A MARRD 7]

TR E R 2 E%E - UERK0.10E T
RIB(EEA17615,335,692 % &k E (&

0.01B TS + &5 496,153,000/ 7T °

(b) R2012F1 A » A RARIM—BBIE=FH %
11784 € %830,000,0007% T 19 AJ 2 AR 2= 4% o
MR2012F 28208 r HREEFHE ATE
AR IR AT B AR R - #244,299,674
MR F R EE0.01 BT % HAR RIRER
0.1228 T RIS IA(H 81T ©

(€ REARRAAKRRN2012F6 81 HERRE
RAE BRBHNEERER  ARRKRAS
B0 ERE(EC.01BTT Z B HITRARET
B & Gt B — IREREEC. 10T 2 R fp -

EXREE
FEEEREANEEBRERELE

BHRERL SRS EREDERE
a2 FERBRREREADE o
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31.

110

Share Capital (Cont’d)

Capital management (Cont’d)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the net
debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes trade and other payables,
and accruals; derivative financial liabilities and bank and
other borrowings), less pledged deposits; and bank and cash
balances.

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2011 was to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio in line with
market expectations. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date is as follows:

AARMETTHIR)

31.

R (4&)

EXEE(E)
AEEBEGNEHHEAEARARBETR
AREE  NEBRSRREEFER T A
BEFFRERY B S (8 B K T 2 R 47 80 & AR
SUE R B R R Z MG T - X
FEEBRRN B HEARRB(ELH
B o

AEBEAFREHEDSLXAEEER
HERRERE - BUAKERFREE
REABE(EEREMNERRREMLEN
REBRER  TEERMBENMRITR
HiEE)REBERFRARRITERE
REER ©

MR2012F A - AN E /) KBS E12011 F
RETE  HFZEEHESLEERFS
HIEE o BT HRBSRAEZLE - AE
ExXeABREMN TRENKRESHE « %
TERRGD REBEATRE E5£FH
ESRMEKLEEEURDAE -

NERE RS R EHESLEDT ¢

2012 2011
Note RMB’000  RMB’000
Mizx AR®TRT ARETT

Trade and other payables, and accruals FETBREZR - H b e 2%
KIEIRE 25 561,558 963,766
Derivative financial liabilities TESmAs 28 - 8
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 1,803,822 1,312,957
Total debt FEN=r 2,365,380 2,276,731
Less: Pledged deposits B EAE R 22 (1,155) (1,078)
Less: Bank and cash balances o RIT RIS AR 23 (14,068) (49,049)
Net debt BAEE 2,350,157 2,226,604
Total equity R 770,720 657,110
Net debt-to-equity ratio FEEHERLEE 305% 338%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.
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32. Convertible Notes

AARMETTIIR)

32. TEREE

On 20 January 2012, the Company issued convertible notes
in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 which is interest
bearing 0.1% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
convertible notes due on 11 January 2013 is convertible into
fully paid ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each of
the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.1228 per share,
subject to adjustment. The effective interest rate is 33.42%. The
convertible notes were fully converted in the current year.

Pursuant to the convertible notes agreement, if the market price
of the Company’s shares met certain predetermined mandatory
conversion price, the Company shall have the right to require the
conversion of the entire outstanding principal amount under the
convertible notes.

The convertible notes contain liability and equity components.
The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible notes reserve”.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at
the issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate
for a similar bond without a conversion option. The residual
amount is assigned as the equity component and is included in
shareholders’ equity.

R20124F1 8208 © KRBT AEEE
/430,000,000 7T * A KB FEIEO.1
EXA¥FE 2 A BRREE - #1X2013
F1ANM BBz IR ERATZER
0.1228% o 2 AR B (7] T H &) K i%
AARNREREEOIBTZHR LR
i% o BERAIR 533.42% ° A HIREE D
RAEAFEZEHIAR -

RBABERERZE - WARBRND
MEEEE TRARE 2@ 1EE R
B AprEREREBRIBERES
HREEAREE -

ABEERESAERERID - #Ex
BOEINBTARREEFEE] T 2®

m °

BEFMZAABEDRETERABLE
R BUES 2 B E IS H RELT
st o RIERRERIIERE B0 - WAt A
BRRERA -

RMB’000

AR®T T

Proceeds of issue BATPTISRIE 24,402
Liability component at date of issue RETHBRNBEESH (17,491)
Equity component R E D 6,911
Liability component at date of issue RETHENEESHD 17,491

Interest charged calculated at an effective interest IR EFEF| R 33.42% 1 & A9 | B 5 52

rate of 33.42% 388

Waiver of interest expenses e F BN (388)

Conversion during the year FRHR (17,491)
At 31 December 2012 7K2012%12A31H =
Equity component at date of issue RE1T A B R D 6,911

Conversion during the year FRH R (6,911)

At 31 December 2012

MR2012F12H31H -
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33. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 33. &AW KR REK

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BEREE 13 -
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RHIEE 1,197,901 1,217,782
Prepayments and deposits FENRIERES 590,765 592,267
Bank balances and cash R1T MR B R 206 45,460
Other payables and accruals E e RIE R TERRE A (8,313) (84,816)
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE e (799,733) (1,007,007)
Current tax liabilities NEAFII B & (4,333) (4,333)
Derivatives financial liabilities MESHERE - (8)
Borrowings R (443,741) (77,357)
NET ASSETS BEFE 532,855 681,988
Share capital R& 2R 18,949 11,971
Reserves G 513,906 670,017
TOTAL EQUITY S 532,855 681,988
34. Reserves 34. f##E
(@) Group (@ F&E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements REBREREEHNSENGE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of PHBRAERRGEREEHRAZE
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of 3l o
changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) ZAAF
Convertible
notes
Share Merger Capital reserve  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve  THERZE losses Total
RHEE rid 1 AR it 2RER @t
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fiE  AR®Tn  AREBTn ARETn ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2011 KO0t 141 18 765,604 ) 1760 - BesR) 692864
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (22,847) (22,847)
At 31 December 2011 R2011%12A31H 766,604 (752) 17,694 - (112,529) 670,017
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (223423  (223429)
lssue of shares ki 44,807 - - - - 44,807
Equity component of convertible notes (IERER Z ERZR 32 - - - 6,911 - 6,911
Conversion of convertible notes HHRHREE 32 22,415 - - (6,911) - 15,504
Share options cancelled EREIFHC 3(0) - - (6,372) - 6,372 -
At31 December 2012 20125128318 832,016 (152) 11,322 - (329580 513,906
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34. Reserves (Cont’d)

AARMETTIIR)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company subject to the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the
subsidiary acquired over the nominal value of the
shares used by the Company exchange therefore.

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after tax of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 3(q) to

(i)  Share premium

(i) Merger reserve

(iii) ~ Statutory reserve
regulations in the PRC.

(iv) Capital reserve
the financial statements.

(v) Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
components of each of the convertible notes issued.
Each convertible note issued are split into their
liability and equity components at initial recognition at
the fair values of each of the convertible notes, which
are determined by independent qualified professional
valuer.

34. #HE(E)

(c) f#E

(1)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)
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35. Equity-settled Share-based Payment

114

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 31 January
2007 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite eligible participants such as employees
and consultants of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company.
These options generally vest after six months to one year from
the date of grant and are exercisable within a period of five to
ten years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of the Company at a predetermined exercise
price plus a consideration of HK$10 per option holder.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed at the report date are as follows, whereby

35. UERGEERURDAERDN

IV

KA RAR200741 A31 BEM—HRK
EEHE B AR R ERERETRIS
BEAEENEENERELAERKLIH
HBEAERETTAARNES)R
BAARRD - ZERBRE—RE BT
BHEEm6EAZ1FRERE  Rans
F10FHMATTE - RIERZTE AER
108 TLIEARE  BHRBRER THE
AR - AIREETEERE—RAR
AT AR -

(a) RHBERPAEEFRBHRRK
REIT - BUHATERRES

all options are settled by physical delivery of DURBETEYRM :
shares:
2012
Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions life of options price
RREHE BERE IRESHED f1EE
Options granted to employees 1% 7 {& 8 FIARIE
- on 15 May 2007 —R2007F5A8150 166,594  Six months from the date of grant 10-years  HK$14.80
% B B w6 1E A 105 14.80%7T
-on 10 October 2007 —120074F10410H 124,066 Six months from the date of grant 10-years  HK$24.10
ML A s mefE A 105 24.10%7T
Options granted to third parties % ¥ & = 7K RIKIE :
-on 15 May 2007 — 120074581508 1,616,217 Six months from the date of grant 10-years  HK$14.80
% B E s w6 1E A 105 14.80%7T
- on 13 February 2008 —12008%2A13H 992,701 Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$13.70

B A St melE A 105 137087

2,899,578
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35. Equity-settled Share-based Payment (Cont’d) 35. URERGEERIROGAEREDN

(@)

(b)

The terms and conditions of the grants that

existed at the report date are as follows, whereby

all options are settled by physical delivery of

shares: (Cont’d)

ENC )

(a) R¥EmERBEFHRROKRR

REFIT - BUFFERRES

RGETENRM : (&)

2011
Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions life of options price
RREHE BERNE RRESHED f16EE
Options granted to directors & FEEHRMRIE -
-on 15 May 2007 —R2007%5815H 2,000,000  Six months from the date of grant 10-years  HK$1.84
miRit B e eME A 10 1.84%7T
Options granted to employees & T {& & MR :
-on 15 May 2007 —M2007454158 12,935,000  Six months from the date of grant 10-years  HK$1.84
% B E w6 fE A 105 1.84%7T
-on 10 October 2007 —R2007410A108 1,000,000  Six months from the date of grant 10-years  HK$2.99
MRt B e weME A 106 2.99%7T
Options granted to third parties & ¥ % = T H)RIKIE :
-on 15 May 2007 —12007454158 13,000,000  Six months from the date of grant 10-years  HK$1.84
% B EET w6 E A 105 1848
- on 13 February 2008 —12008%F2713H 8,000,000  Six months from the date of grant 10-years  HK$1.70
miit B e weME A 108 1.70%7
36,935,000

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share

options at the reporting date:

Exercise period
1TEHA

(b) REE B E R EMK ERT

SRR AE R HARR
Exercise price Number of option
TEE RREHE
2012 2011 2012

2011

15 November 2007 to 14 May 2017
2007F11 H15HE2017F5H14H
10 April 2008 to 9 October 2017
20084 A10H E2017410A9H
13 August 2008 to 12 August 2018
2008F8 A13HE2018F8H12H

HK$14.80 HK$1.84 1,782,811

14.807% 7T 1.84%87C
HK$24.10 HK$2.99
24,1058 T 2.997%8 7T
HK$13.70 HK$1.70
13.70/8 T 1.70%7T

27,935,000

124,066 1,000,000

992,701 8,000,000

2,899,578 36,935,000
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35. Equity-settled Share-based Payment (Cont’d) 35. URREERUROGAEEDN

N (&)
() The number and weighted average exercised (c) REBREHBERKEMEELHYITHE
prices of share options are as follows: BT :
2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price  of options
n#EEH It
TEE =RBREE TEE  RARESE
Outstanding at beginning of year 41X A1T{E HK$1.84 36,935,000 HK$1.84 36,935,000
Exercised during the year FRTTE N/A - N/A =
Adjusted during the year F AT N/A (32,345,238) N/A =
Cancelled during the year FAEH HK$14.80 (1,690,184) N/A -
Outstanding at end of year FR i AITE HK$14.82 2,899,578 HK$1.84 36,935,000
Exercise at end of year FIRAIFITE HK$14.82 2,899,578 HK$1.84 36,935,000
During the year ended 31 December 2012, 1,690,184 HE2012F12A31HIEFE © K
share options granted on 15 May 2007 were cancelled. 2007 £ 5 A 15 B #% i #9 1,690,184
Accordingly, the fair value on grant date of the share MARREETHE - At - EFER
options so cancelled of approximately RMB6,372,000 was BHEARTEBENAABENARE
transferred from the capital reserve to retained profits. 6,372,000 02 & A fEHEEE =R
BB A
The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had 20124F 12 431 B M AR 17E R
exercise prices of HK$13.70, HK$14.80 or HK$24.10 K1T{EEA13.708 7T « 14.80/8 7Lk
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.81 2410870 - MMEFHRTEOF
years. B4 .814F o
The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had 2011F 12 31 B 8 AR 1TE B #E
exercise prices of HK$1.70, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99 and a KT EE A/1.708 7T « 1.848 L3k
weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.65 years. 2.9978 7T - mNETFHHRT &L FEH
#5.65%F °
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35. Equity-settled Share-based Payment (Cont’d)

(d)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on either the
Black-Scholes pricing model or the binomial lattice model.
The contractual life and expectations of early exercise of
the share option were used as inputs into relevant models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions are as
follows:

Fair value at measurement date R ERBHNARE
Share price (&
Exercise price 7B
Expected volatility (expressed as  TEHRK 1B (b %
weighted average volatility R PR R e
used in the models) TR EERR)
Option life (expressed as weighted 2B A (LA 18 P T
average life used in the models) R METHFRRT)
Expected dividends TREARR B

BB AR (LASNE
HEREHE)
RAMEERRA

Risk-free interest rate (based on
Exchange Fund Notes)
Valuation model used

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There
was no market conditions associated with the share option
grants.

AARMETTIIR)

35. UEREERURAAERNA
;&)
(d) REENQABERRBR
AR TR IR A BR P IR B AR TS B0 &
RET2EBAE TRREN AR E
T2 o IR TRIREN A BT
TR EIA N — aF T EERE N sk
ZIEHAHEENGE c BRENE
A E A R TR ERIR B AT T 1E R BUR
W AGEES o
RIRER A EREET -
15 May 10 October 13 February
2007 2007 2008
200758158 20074 10810H 20082 H13H
HK$0.47 HK$0.64 HK$0.54
HK$1.84 HK$2.93 HK$1.61
HK$1.84 HK$2.99 HK$1.70
48.9% 61.1% 56.2%
3.25 years 10 years 10 years
3.4% 1.21% —
4.2% 4.3% 2.7%
Black-Scholes Binominal Binominal

T B9 0 T 18 4 52 RO (1R4E 12
BRI T OB TERTE)
A FAR AR I A KB R AT
BB R ARIE -

REERIBRIFACTLLER o ZARN
I B Et N FTURER AR 14 A H G
NAEFTE - WEEADRELIRE
FRRO TS R I
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AARMETTHIR)

36. Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 36.
Disposal of subsidiaries
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
disposed of certain subsidiaries. Net assets of the
subsidiaries being disposed of at the date of disposal were

(a)

118

as follows:

MRS RERME
(a) HEMEAR

BE2012F 121 HLEFE - &
SELEETHEBAR - %FEH
ERBARRNLE RS EEFE

o :

Shenyang Huizhou Xing
Hong Long Wo Property

Luxegood Real Estate Development
Development  Company Company
Limited Limited* Limited* Total
BMNm
EERRE BEEBE BEREHE
BRAT BXBRAT BRERLH HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment ¥)2 « fE k& & 606 17 - 623
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 177 _ _ 177
Inventories 75 399,631 134,966 - 534,597
Trade and other receivables & BR 7% Kz £ fth FE U 3¢ 40,220 39,120 - 79,340
Tax recoverable JE W F I8 6,188 - - 6,188
Pledged deposits EIRFR 1,575 - - 1,575
Bank and cash balances BIRESER 7,572 136 = 7,708
Trade and other payables, FEMEER - HitENT R
and accruals HEIRER (273,074) (106,206) - (379,280)
Receipts in advances TR (145,987) — = (145,987)
Bank and other borrowings ~ $R1T R EMEE (48,850) (3,000) - (51,850)
Impairment of assets BERE (8,861) = = (8,861)
Net assets BEFHE (20,803) 65,033 = 44,230
The Group balance disposed & HEEE 4% 265,731 = 20 265,751
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of HEMBAR
subsidiaries Wi/ (E8) 772 16,967 (20) 17,719
Impairment loss on H i fEMCER SR E B 18
other receivables (194,176) = = (194,176)
Total consideration HBRE
— satisfied by cash —BEe X 51,524 82,000 - 133,524
— consideration offsetting —IREMB AR B E
against the subsidiary’s
liability - (9,500) - (9,500)
51,524 72,500 - 124,024
Nel cash inflow arising from  HEELRIES
disposal: MAFEE
Cash consideration received & W ER(E 51,524 72,500 - 124,024
Cash and cash equivalent P ENEE R
disposed of BeEEY (7,572) (136) = (7,708)
43,952 72,364 - 116,316
For identification purpose only * EH-ER
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36. Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash 36. FEBEEREXRMT(HE)
Flows (Cont’d)
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (cont’d) (a) HEMEARE)
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group R2011F12A31 R LEFE * A%
disposed of certain subsidiaries. Net assets of the BHEETHWEAR - HEHNBA
subsidiaries being disposed of at the date of disposal were AR E RN EEFELT
as follows:
Shenzhen Dongguan Shenzhen Shenzhen
Hong Long Shenzhen Honghua Meizhou Shenzhen Kong Long Yiurui
Weiye Property Yinghua Industrial Hong Long Hong Long Property  Investment
Development  Development Investment ShiYe  RealEstate ~ Management  Development
Company Company Company Company Company Company Company
Limited* Limited* Limited* ~ Powermore Limited* Limited* Limited* Limited*
Hngee: PITREEE RRTREEE Limted ~ GNREEE RUTHEEE RUTERNE RUTERRE Total
EHEERAT  EBARAR  REARAR  MEARLR BRAA ERAA BRAA  BRERDA aft
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETT AEBTT ARETT ARBTT AEBTT ARBTT AEBTT ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment 1% KRRk - - - 8 18 - % - 1%
Avalable-for-sale fnancial assets I HESRAE - - - - - 250 - - 250
Deferred fax assets EitfEaE - = - 2115 - = = = 211
Inventorigs s = = = 18632 192 8,633 = 548 94,53
Trade and other recevables  EMEFREMELR 20,698 98,99 19,924 30,542 37 - i 9% 169,869
Trading securties 8525 - - - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
Amount due fomthe Growp RSB VA 5018 48,026 36,863 128436 1,061 = 219,3%
Current ax asses EHEEE - - - - 4,823 - - - 4893
Pledged deposits vl - - - 5,00 13 - - - 5,163
Bank and cash balances RFikGeER 3 6 4 12,038 109 (15) 1529 2 13919
Tradeand oherpayables,  EfER ApEUR
and aceruals RERER (600) (65,860) (15,109) (32,89) (2,606) (18,000 2,009 (1,248 (138,318)
Recelpts n advances B - - - [24811) (1,029) - - - (25,834
Amounts dutothe Group  ERAEEZE (176) (4,14 - (38,169) - - (i7%] (5,000) (£8.030)
Bankand otherborowings ~~ STRAMEE - - - (20,000) - - - - (20,000)
Curent tax abltes T - = = (9,600 s (28,139) = = (37,738)
Net assets AESE 1992 23,97 9,684 51,3% 43,960 94316 164 = 23592
Non-controling inerest JHARiER - - %9) - - - - - (%89)
The Group balence disposed ~ HEREB#E 176 4,148 (5,018 (9,863 (36,869) (128 436 (508) 5,000 (171,364
(Gain/[Loss) on disposal of HENRBAT
subsidiaries Wsl(E8) 699 (105) 123 25,069 903 5,120 1,074 1,000 81,873
Total consideration - ERE-IReRN
satfsfied by cash 20,800 28,000 4,000 66,592 8,000 19,000 720 6,000 153,112
Netcashinfowarsngfom ~~ (HEEEHEERA
disposel: B
(Cash consideration received BUBERE 20,800 28,000 4000 66,592 8,000 19,000 10 6,000 163112
Cash and cash equivalent HENRER
dlsposed of BEZEN @ ) (47) (12.238) (109 19 (1,529 @ (13919)
20,797 21,9% 3,963 54,364 7,801 19,015 (809) 5,098 139,193
* For identification purpose only * EHER
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36. Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows (Cont’d)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions
Included in additions to investment properties during the
year is an amount of approximately RMB6,430,000 which
was transferred from prepayments.

During the current year, additions to inventories of
approximately RMB290,417,000 included in trade and
other payables, and accruals was increased property
consideration of acquisition of Shenzhen City Zirui Real
Estate Development Company Limited in 2008.

Included in additions to inventories during the year is an
amount of approximately RMB12,061,000 which was
included in trade and other payables, and accruals.

37. Contingent Liabilities

120

(@)

At 31 December 2012, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities granted
in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
purchasers of the Group’s properties as follows:

AARMETTHIR)

36. FERETREBERME(E)

(b)

FEHBEERS
AFREEMEREBIEERES
A R IBBH AR #6,430,0007T 2
FRIH o

RAFEER - FEARMERR - Hit
ENRREREREEFERED
A K #290,417,0007T + A7 2008
FRBRINZIRFEHEREERA
AIEINZ MEARE -

‘;+/\¢qu1%7,5§ B ATER R
EMEMERBREAOAR
Di1§12,061 ,0007T °

37. RAREE

(a)

MR2012%12 A31H - AEERA
BAEEMEE AR U RIZIBER

MR R IB A B - B T
THRELBRIT

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage FLE HERIZIGRIEEE
facilities granted to purchasers MIRITIREER - 30,462
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there are any RIBER 2GR HiRBHIRELD
defaults on the mortgages, the Group is responsible to |ﬁ/ﬂ, AEEEEEEEENER

repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with
accrued interest and penalty owed by the defaulting
purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled to
take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The guarantees shall be released in
accordance with the terms of the guarantee contracts,
such as:

(i) upon the issue of the relevant purchaser’s property
ownership certificate and in the custody of the bank;
or

(i)  up to a maximum of two years after the full
repayment of mortgage loan by the relevant
purchaser.

At 31 December 2012, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Sun Century Group Limited AR5 42 S @H R A 5
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37. Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d)

(o)

At 31 December 2012, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks and financial institutions to the extent of
RMB981,000,000 (2011: RMB1,131,000,000) in respect
of loan facilities granted to certain disposed subsidiaries.
The maximum liability of the Group, at 31 December
2012, under the guarantees was the total facilities utilised
by the disposed subsidiaries as at the same date which
amounted to approximately RMB503,000,000 (2011:
RMB756,000,000). The guarantees shall be released, in
accordance with the terms of the guarantee contracts, up
to a maximum of two years after the full repayment of the
loans.

At 31 December 2012, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees since the loan facilities were also
secured by certain certificates of land use rights of lands
owned by the disposed subsidiaries and 100% equity
interest of the disposed subsidiaries.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to a purchase agreement of land use right and
a supplement agreement both dated 31 January 2008,
if the Group cannot complete the underlying property
development project at Chaohu City, Anhui Province,
the PRC (“Chaohu Project”) on or before 31 December
2010, the vendor shall charge the Group a daily penalty
of 0.1% on the land premium amount. At 31 December
2012, the Group experienced a delay in the construction
progress and would not be able to meet the contractual
construction completion date. However, up to the date
of the approval of the financial statements, the Group
has not received any enforcement notice from the vendor
in relation to the above. Based on past experience, the
directors are of the opinion that the first phase of Chaohu
Project shall be completed in 2013 and the Group will
not be subject to any penalties relating to the delay in
the contractual construction completion date. Hence, no
provision has been made in the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has been in litigation
in relation to various claims totalled RMB560,600,000, in
which RMB440,600,000 due to Shenzhen Branch of China
Construction Bank has already been accrued. Based
on the legal advice obtained, the directors believe that
the Group has reasonable good chances of successfully
defending those claims. Hence no further provision has
been made in the consolidated financial statements.

AARMETTIIR)

37. AREE(E)

(b)

M2012F 12 A31H » REEIK
FTETEHENNBRARMNER
BhE A TIRTT R b B g R
1R3E A R #981,000,0007T (2011
£ AR#%1,131,000,0007T ) °
ANEE2012F12 A31 BRERT
M= 8E  A%ZcHENEBAR
RRBATEARNRMEBEHARE
503,000,000 (20114 : AR#
756,000,0007T ) ° #Z%ER B IR IE
EREOIER - REEERIEE
B2 ME N ©

R2012%612A31H - BABER
BMENMAZE HEHNBARFT#ES
WET Tt AEZEERZDELE
KB AR M IR IEIRE - &
ERAAEER FMERMARR
EOEETK -

BRAERNEERAPZ AR ELT
EX - A ERGE SRR
27 o

B8 B HAtH £2008F1 A31 B+
o FARERE B i s R T e -
AREBER2010F12 A31 H sk 2 Al
REETEA I B 22 R4 & T B4R
Y EERIAE ([E£HPIEE )
BRI RS EEE0.1 %A
AEBWEESHER - R20124F
12A81H » AEEBEELEE
EHR - RpgER|ARZ T HE - A
i BEMBHmEEBR - A&
& 18 Rt BIE R B S AT
TEBAN BEEALR  EFR
& BHIEEE —HiR20134F
EREAEE B TEREBERR
T HHEAERRZ B EIEE & o Eitt -
WA IR A P ISR AL B -

MR2012%F12A318 » AEBHKE
H A R #560,600,0007T (HAE
TEIRREN R BEERRITFEIDITH
AR #440,600,0007T) 2 Z B R
EMEERFA - REMEE ZAE
ER  EEHEASEEAEAK
ERZEREFEF - AL - W&
RERE IS RFTAE L — P A o
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38. Lease Commitments

AARMETTHIR)

38. HERIE

At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

MR20125 12 A31H » TA[HE& LT
ETEMNABXEEEFIERLBIT

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTIT

Within one year 1FR 2,597 2,093
In the second to fifth years inclusive F2FEFELF (SFELF) 1,801 3,458
After five years 5F A F - -
4,398 5,551

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its offices, staff quarters and sub-leased properties.
Leases are typically negotiated for periods from two to fifteen
years and do not include contingent rentals.

During the year, approximately RMB Nil (2011: RMB5,846,000)
was recognised in profit or loss as rental expenses in respect of
sub-leased properties.

REHEFREAEBREEFE B
THEekSEYERNNES - HER
B EE15FEHE - BT BESRAE
@ o

RAFEE  HAREZL(20114F : A
R #5,846,00070) E N8 NIER & D
HyEMHELEE -

39. Capital Commitments 39. EXREE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided M12H31 B MAREMERERPEHFH A
for in the financial statements were as follows: AEPENT ¢
The Group
AEH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Authorised but not contracted for EREERFTH 837,968 1,340,625
Contracted but not provided for EHEEE L 261,993 403,073
1,099,961 1,743,698
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40. Related Party Transactions 40.
In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions and balances with related parties
during the year:

(@) Key management personnel compensation
The key management personnel of the Group comprises
all directors, details of their emoluments were disclosed in
note 12 to the financial statements.

(b) Balances with related parties

BEALRS

BRI ISR i 77 B ax F &
AER B RAERIN  NREEERREALT
REANRZ RAERIAT

(@ EEEBAEEHM
AREENTEEEASBBEMESE
£ BENFTMNFERERTBH
=MIFE12 ©

(b) EEBAEA L HAEER

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARKTTT

Included in trade and other payables, SFAFERBRR - HiENZ R

and accruals TEIRE
Amount due to a related party, JES—RBEAT
which is beneficially owned and (HAERITES B ER
controlled by Mr. ZENG Yunshu, SEBRRESR RIED) KA
an ex-executive Director - 200
Amount due to a former director, eI B E = s A
ZENG SHENG 437 437
Included in bank and other borrowings st ARITREMEE
Amount due to shareholder, which is B — 2R (BRITES
beneficially owned and controlled BlEZELEE R T B E
by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an executive  (H{TESH=E2HRE)
Director and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, Bl RIEH) I8
the spouse of Ms. Yeung So Miu,
an executive Director 443,741 77,357

Included in finance cost STARE KA
Interest accrued for the shareholder's R EEZ(RHHITES

loan, which is beneficially owned and ElEE L ERET BEE

controlled by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, (BITESHRBL T ZRE)
an executive Director and R REH) M ERF A

Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, the spouse
of Ms. Yeung So Mui, an executive
Director

4,647 -
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41.

124

Principal Subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion

41. TEHBLQT
TREHFI TS EREEEE L&
LEaENNBARNGES EFRAE
IR AP B A B BB S B RS

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. The BRILE - BB ABEI - FrEAEHR
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. DER AL B o
Percentage
ownership
Place of interest/
incorporation Issued voting power/

Name of or registration Place of and paid profit sharing Principal

subsidiaries ML operation up capital FERHEEREMELE  activities Legal form

WEARERE B K ERTRERMER RER/BANESL TEER EEFR

Direct Indirect
E# Cik:
% %

Access Achievement BVI The PRC US$10,000 100 - Investment Private limited

Limited EBERLES o 10,000% 7T holding liabilities
RERR company
MABR AT

Sun Century Property The PRC The PRC RMB299,000,000 = 100  Property Wholly foreign
Group Company h H AR#299,000,0007T development  owned
Limited (Formerly and property enterprises
known as Hong investment  AMEBEME
Long Property Group MERER
Company Limited) MERE

At EEEER
AR (AR ABEIE
SEBRAT)

Shenzhen Hong Long The PRC The PRC RMB10,680,000 - 100  Property Limited
Commercial H H AE10,680,0007C leasing and liabilities
Management sub-leasing company
Company Limited NEHEREBHE BRAA

AIMEEHEER
BRAF

Shenzhen Zirui Real The PRC The PRC RMB21,000,000 - 100  Property Limited
Estate Development 3 AE%21,000,0007C development liabilities
Limited? ek company

RINEREERE BRAR
BR AR
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Principal Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

AARMETTIIR)

M. FEHRBLT(E)

Percentage
ownership
Place of interest/
incorporation Issued voting power/
Name of or registration Place of and paid profit sharing Principal
subsidiaries ML operation up capital FE{;EEEELE  activities Legal form
WEARARE it R ERTREBHER RER/BANESL TEER EERR
Direct Indirect
B ik
% %
Shenzhen Guang Long  The PRC The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100  Property Limited
City Commercial F H AR #1,000,0007T leasing and liabilities
Management Company sub-leasing company
Limited NEMERER BRAA
MTAEREEEE
BRAF
Hong Long Winfnder The PRC The PRC RMB74,000,000 = 100  Property Wholly foreign
(Shenyang) H H AR#74,000,0007T development  owned
Real Estates Company ek enterprises
Limited WEBERE
BEHE(BG)EX
BRAR
Chaohu Boshing Tourism The PRC The PRC US$7,000,000 - 100  Property Wholly foreign
Development Company H 7,000,000% 0 development  owned
Limited MmERE enterprises
ENER IR SEEERE
BB AT
# The Group acquired 90% of the equity interest of Shenzheng Zirui Real # R &R B R 2008 F Wi RN 3 ([ARYIIE3 1)

Estate Development Limited (“SZ Zirui”) in 2008. According to the share
transfer agreement entered, the vendor shall transfer the remaining 10%
equity interest to the Group upon the delivery of certain properties to the
vendor upon completion of construction. However, the vendor shall not
share any profits in SZ Zirui and shall not participate in the financial and
operating policies of SZ Zirui. Hence, the Group regards SZ Zirui as a

wholly-owned subsidiary.

Other Matters

On 21 December 2009, the Company entered into a Credit
Note with CCB International Asset Management Limited (“CCB”)
under which CCB agreed to make available to the Company
an Offshore Financing in the amount of US$40,000,000. Grand
Prosperity Limited (“Grand Prosperity”), the then majority
shareholder of the Company, was acting as the corporate
guarantor in favour of CCB under the Credit Note.

42,

B90% fEHE o RIRAR ) B R ek - B AR
[FE )7 R E TR TR R AR EEES
T10%MHE - A1 - B AEDIERYIRE
EVERDE R - BTS2 R B RTR I K 60§
BREERR « Ut - AEBERHRNN KRR
REEMBRAF -

Hun=E1g

MR2009F 128218 « KRR EHER
BEREEEERRAR([&ER])FTL
EEZE Bt  BREAEBERAAQF
12 £ & %8 440,000,000 3 7T Z 15 40 @t
& o Grand Prosperity Limited ([ Grand
Prosperity]) * ARG &R 2 EEK
R BREBEEEEREEEREEER
A e
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42. Other Matters (Cont’d)

126

Under the Credit Note, the Company agreed to pay to CCB an
up-front fee of HK$76,000,000, which was settled by issue and
allotment of 80,000,000 Consideration Shares by the Company
at the issue price of HK$0.95.

Under the Credit Note, Grand Prosperity has granted a Put
Option to CCB. On exercise of the Put Option, the price payable
by Grand Prosperity for the purchase of each Consideration
Share would be HK$1.50 per share, being the aggregate of
HK$120,000,000.

On 20 November 2012, the Company received a letter (the
“Letter”) from the solicitors acting on behalf of CCB (“CCB
Solicitors”) alleging and claiming that:

()  as aresult of the exercise of the Put Option by CCB, Grand
Prosperity was required under the Credit Note to pay
CCB the aggregate exercise price of the option shares of
HK$120,000,000;

(i) CCB has received from Grand Prosperity only partial
payment in the sum of HK$35,000,000, leaving the
outstanding balance of HK$85,000,000 which remains
due and payable;

(i) pursuant to the terms of the Credit Note, the Company is
required to indemnify CCB against any cost, loss or liability
incurred by CCB as a result of, respectively, an event
of default, and the failure by Grand Prosperity (being an
obligor) to pay any amount due under a finance document
as defined under the Credit Note on its due date; and

(iv) pursuant to the terms of the Credit Note, an event of
default includes the non-payment by an obligor of any
amount payable pursuant to a finance document as
defined under the Credit Note.

Under the Letter, CCB’s Solicitors demanded payment from
the Company (by way of indemnity) of (i) the unpaid sum of
HK$85,000,000, together with (i) default interest at the rate
of ten per cent per annum from 13 January 2012, the original
completion date of the alleged exercise of the Put Option, until
the date of payment and (iii) all costs and expenses (including
legal fees) incurred by them in recovering payment.

Sun Century Group Limited AR5t 42 =@ AR A 7

42, HthER(E)

BEEEZE  ARARBEEREEZF
FE 1~ 276,000,000 7T * 5% 7B JIH A
NEBBILEITE0.958 L3817 M Bl 3%
80,000,000k R ERR D4 °

BIE(EEZ > Grand Prosperity B A
RBRELRLE -  RITERAER -
Grand Prosperity 5t & § & & (X B & D
FENZEBRBERIL0BT  A&A
120,000,000/ 7T °

R20129F11 B208 @ A AR EEREK
IR 22BN ([ZiR 2 A ) 2 k(5%
D) BEKERERE:

() BRBRITEREGE  Grand
Prosperity 78 1R 15 15 B 2 & 7] &
IR NEEERO 2ITEES
120,000,000/ 7T :

(i)  #R £ Y &l Grand Prosperity 3%
~f 2 & 9 5 18 & 51 385,000,000 7%
TC 0 WA R HEMN 2 R B
85,000,000/ 7T :

(i) WEBEEEZBEZER  AARA
7 Bl 3t 2 IR 2 49 E 4 & Grand
Prosperity (BMETS A ) REERIE =
BEERAATE 2 BE SR E K
BRI B X 2 E 5 B E m AR 2
ZAERKA - Bk B ERERE
HEE : &

(iv) REEERBZGR  BEOEHE
REBARERBEEREBMAE
Z R A S HEfRI B AN 3RIR o

RIRFZ 1 - IR 2 BRI E KA R A A
(& 2 77 2\ A5 () AR 15 578 85,000,000
BT 0 A ()E201241 A 13H (BfE1T
FRLEZ VKBS BERAKA
HYIRF B EA0%AT & 2 518 K (i) [ E R
WENREEEZMAERARAY (2
FREENE) o
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43.

AARMETTIIR)

Other Matters (Cont’d)

On 8 February 2013, the Company received a Writ of Summons
issued out of the Court with respect to the dispute between
CCB as the plaintiff with the Company as one of the defendants.
For the avoidance of doubt, Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Yunshu,
being a director of Grand Prosperity and the then Chairman
and President of the Company and Mr. Zeng Sheng, being a
director of Grand Prosperity and the then Vice-Chairman of the
Company, have been joined as the other defendants.

Based on counsel opinion, the directors are of the view that the
claims are not valid.

No judgment on the legal proceedings has been made yet
and the financial impact of the legal proceedings cannot
be ascertained at the date of this annual report. Hence,
no provision has been made in the consolidated financial
statements.

Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures for the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation. No consolidated statement of
financial position has been presented as the reclassifications
would not affect consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2011.

Details are set out as follows:

42,

43.

HAun=E15 (&)

201352 H8H » AA R AT
REMSHK  ARERER(EARE)
BARNR(ERKEE 2 — )2 FESH -
A% TFE - Grand Prosperity * & E1& 4%
4 (Grand ProsperityZ = R A D RS
B2 £ RBE) MG %E(AGrand
Prosperity 7 = K AR A& 2 8l =
&) IRE 5 B E A o

REBEZEZER BEFRARFRYUERE
&

RAEHRBH  ZRRFHRBHR
At EEEEREF I BEE -
b WENER S M RAR A -

LR F
mAZARSERZETHREFTEEN
28 UEEAFEZEY AN - @R
BB T E2011F12831B K
2011F1 A1 B 2R IR « 8K
I 25 ERE AR EK -

BT UNNE

As previously

report Reclassification

As restated

A2 3R B HE 57

Other net expenses Hibh S B %58 (18,886) 15,085 (3,801)
Other income E g A 15,085 (15,085) -
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AARMETTHIR)

Events After the Reporting Period

On 5 September 2012, the Board proposed to raise
approximately HK$313 million before expenses and the set off
of the shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$69 million by
issuing 1,254,184,050 offer shares at the subscription price
of HK$0.25 per offer share on the basis of six offer shares for
every one share of the Company held on 27 December 2012
(the “Open Offer”). The resolution approving the Open Offer
has been passed by the shareholders at the extra-ordinary
general meeting held on 17 December 2012. The acceptance
of and payment for the offer shares closed at 15 January 2013
and a total of 255 valid acceptances of offer shares have been
received for a total of 716,186,608 offer shares. The remaining
537,997,442 un-subscribed offer shares were underwritten and
taken up the underwriter. The net proceeds of the Open Offer
raised is approximately HK$244 million. The share certificates
for the offer shares have been dispatched to those relevant
shareholders on 23 January 2013.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2013.

Sun Century Group Limited AR5t 42 =@ AR A 7
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45.

REHEZEER

M2012F9 A0 r EFxegaikn
2012F 12 A27THBH B AR A1K
RO EERBEERGB ZEE U
ERBERMN025B T2 RB BT
1,254,184,050 W EE KD  EEH
313,000,000/8 7T ( R &HF 2 & 3K 85 3%
HE 7 4969,000,00058 7T AT ) ([ 2 B 3%
Bl BERRBE ZAZEREMK2012
F1I2A1TEHRIT ZREEN RS L&
BB - AR FEERD 2H
IFHEA201351 8150 » A HEE
255 B ERO 2 BRIEN - FRAEH
716,186,608 % B & X0 ° 2 T KRB
537,997,442 R BEERMHEER R
B NRE c ARBREMSIIEFEEY
244,000,000 7T - HERNDZKEE
720134F1 B23H F & T A AR -

it A A 55 R R
EEZECN2013F3 A28 Bt /W X 12
FIBEB|/E -
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